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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and Council of
the City ofParkersburg

Parkersburg, West Virginia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statementsof the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, eachmajor fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information ofthe CityofParkersburg, WestVirginia, as ofand for
the year endedJune 30,2014 and the relatednotes to the financial statements, whichcollectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table ofcontents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation ofthese financial statements
in accordancewith accountingprinciples generallyacceptedin the United States ofAmerica; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance ofinternal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation offinancial statements that are fi*ee fi*om material misstatement,
whether due to fi*aud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did
not audit the financial statements of the Parkersburg UtilityBoard,whichrepresents 77.23
percent, 95.51 percent, and 33.54 percent, respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of
the Cityof Parkersburg. Those statements wereaudited by otherauditors whose report hasbeen
furnished to us, andour opinion, insofaras it related to the amounts included for the Parkersburg
Utility Board, is based solely on the report ofother auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require thatweplanandperform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are fi"ee fi"om
material misstatement.



The Honorable Mayor and Council of
theCity of Parkersburg Page 2

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in thefinancial statements. The procedures selected depend ontheauditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks ofmaterial misstatement of the financial
statements, whetherdue to fi*aud or error. In makingthose risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal control relevant to theentity's preparation and fair presentation of thefinancial
statements in order to designauditprocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
forthepurpose of expressing anopinion on theeffectiveness of theentity's intemal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Anauditalso includes evaluating the appropriateness
ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements.

Webelieve that theaudit evidence wehave obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report ofother auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, inall material respects, therespective financial position of the
governmental activities, thebusiness-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component umts, each major fund andtheaggregate remaining fund information of theCityof
Parlcersburg, West Virginia asofJxme 30,2014, and therespective changes infinancial position,
and, where applicable, cash flows thereofand therespective budgetary comparison of the
General Fund and the Coal Severance Fund for the year then endedin accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

Emphasis ofMatter

Asdescribed inNote 1to thefinancial statements fortheyear ended June 30,2014, theCity of
Parkersburg, West Virginia adopted new accounting guidance, GASB 65, Items Previously
Reported as Assets andLiabilities, GASB 66, Technical Corrections —2012 —an amendment of
GASB Statements No. 10andNo. 62and GASB 67,FinancialReportingfor Pension Plans —an
amendment ofGASB Statement No. 25. Our opinion is notmodified with respect to these
matters.

OtherMatters

Required Supplementary Information

Management hasomitted themanagement's discussion and analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in theUnited States ofAmerica require to bepresented tosupplement the
basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of thebasic financial



The Honorable Mayor and Council of
theCityof Parkersburg Page 3

statonents, is requiredby the Governmental Accounting StandardsBoard, who considers it to be
an essentialpart ofthe financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Ouropinion on the basic financial
statements is not affected by this missing information.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require thatthe
Schedule of Changes in NetPension Liability andRelated Ratios Multiyear —Firemen's Pension
andReliefFund, Schedule of the Net Pension Liability Multiyear —Firemen's Pension andRelief
Fund, Schedule of Contributions Multiyear - Firemen's Pension and ReliefFund,Notesto
Schedule of Contributions —Firemen's Pension and ReliefFund, tobepresented to supplement
thebasic financial statements. Such information, although not a partof thebasic financial
statements, is requiredby the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,who considers it to be
an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statementsin an
appropriate operational, economic or historical context. Wehaveapplied certain limited
procedures to therequired supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries ofmanagement
about themethods ofpreparing theinformation and comparing theinformation forconsistency
withmanagement's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge weobtained during ouraudit of thebasic financial statements. We donotexpress an
opinion orprovide anyassurance on the information because thelimited procedures donot
provide us withsufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide anyassurance.

Other Information

Our auditwas conducted for the purposeofforming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Cityof Parkersburg, West Virginia's financial statements. The
combming and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented forpurposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part ofthe basic financid statements. The schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented forpurposes of additional anal3^is as required by
U.S. Office of Management andBudget Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Governments,
and Non-PrcfitOrganizations, and is alsonot a required partof fhebasic financial statements.

The combiningand individualnonmajorfund financial statements and the scheduleof
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and werederived from and
relate directly to theunderlying accounting and other records used to prepare thebasic financial
statements. Such information hasbeensubjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling suchinformation directly to the underlying accounting andotherrecords usedto
prepare thebasic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, andother
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in theUnited
States ofAmerica. Inouropinion, the combining andindividual nonmajor fund financial
statements and the schedule ofexpenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other ReportiiigRequired by GovernmentAuditing Standards

Inaccordance withGovernment Auditing Standards, wehave also issued ourreport dated
March 2,2015,on ourconsideration of theCity of Parkersburg, West Virginia's internal control
overfinancial reporting andonour tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose ofthat report is to
describe the scope ofour testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results ofthat testing, andnot to provide an opinion on intemal control overfinancial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral partof anaudit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering theCity ofParkersburg, West Virginia's
intemal control overfinancial reporting andcompliance.

March 2,2015



aiY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014

Assets

Cash

Investments

Receivables

Inventoiy
Prepaid expenses
Restricted assets

Capital assets, net
Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Rresources

Unamortized bond discount and issue costs

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Due to primary government
Accrued compensation
Accrued compensated absences
Customer deposits
Accrued bond interest

Other current liabilities

Accrued other post-employment benefits
Due to other governmental units
Uneamed revenue

Long-term liabilities
Due Avithin one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

Primary Government
Goveromental Business Type

Activities Activities Total

Component Unit

Utility Board

6,500,983 $ 1,348,635 $ 7,849,618 $ 7,714,184
2,615,207 1,343,556 3,958,763 -0-

10,035,525 -0- 10,035,525 1,649,111
-0- -0- -0- 313,821
-0- -0- -0- 62,374
-0- 2,650,770 2,650,770 16,202,019

9.812.046 3.628.138 13.440.184 103.160.509

28.963.761 8.971.099 37.934.860 129.102.018

-0- 14.136 14.136 -0-

28.963.761 8.985.235 37.948.996 129.102.018

712,106 37,525 749,631 531,353
-0- -0- -0- 16,025

217,584 8,732 226,316 -0-

-0- -0- -0- 210,162
-0- -0- -0- 463,024

36,885 -0- 36,885 629,651
-0- -0- -0- 100,154

7,945,240 168,156 8,113,396 -0-

6,559 -0- 6,559 -0-

49,354 -0- 49,354 -0-

550,577 140,346 690,923 4,446,271
24.799.861 408.896 25.208.757 61.721.439

34.318.166 763.655 35.081.821 68.118.079

7,388,937
362,922

(13.106.2641

$( 5.354.4051

3,211,572
2,650,770
2.359.238

$ 8.221.580

10,600,509
3,013,692

(10.747.0261

$ 2.867.175

40,038,059
15,109,344
5.836.536

$ 60,983,939

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this statement.



Functions/Programs

Primaty Government

Governmental Activities

General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Health and sanitation

Culture and recreation

Economic development
Insurance and benefits paid
Community development

Total governmental activities

Business-Type Activities
Parks and recreation

Memorial Bridge
Parking garage

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Component Unit
Utility board

aiY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Expenses

Charges for

Services

Program Revenues
Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities

Operating

Grants and

Contributions

Capital

Grants and

Contributions

Component Unit

Total Utility Board

$ 4,806,062 $ 27,650 $ -0- $ -0- $( 4,778,412) $ -0- $( 4,778,412) $ -0-
12,362,134 2,512,702 168,666 -0- ( 9,680,766) -0- ( 9,680,766) -0-
5,957,026 2,630,173 -0- -0- ( 3,326,853) -0- ( 3,326,853) -0-
2,200,628 2,460,383 -0- -0- 259,755 -0- 259,755 -0-

492,534 117,127 -0- 176,307 ( 199,100) -0- ( 199,100) -0-
23,484 -0- -0- -0- ( 23,484) -0- ( 23,484) -0-

2,810,344 2,613,031 -0- -0- ( 197,313) -0- ( 197,313) -0-
963.563 116.575 1.532.709 -0- 685.721 -0- 685.721 -0-

29.615.775 10.477.641 1.701.375 176.307 07.260.4521 -0- 07.260.4521 -0-

297,632 99,489 -0- -0- -0- ( 198,143) ( 198,143) -0-
1,417,066 1,724,746 -0- -0- -0- 307,680 307,680 -0-

350.389 242.615 -0- 71.000 -0- f 36.7741 ( 36.7741 -0-
2.065.087 2.066.850 -0- 71.000 -0- 72.763 72.763 -0-

$ 31.680.862 $ 12.544.491 S 1.701.375 $ 247.307 07.260.4521 72.763 07.187.6891 -0-

$ 13.564.165 $ 16.261.691 $ -0- $ 18,440 -0- -0- -0- 2.715.966



General Revenues

Taxes and special assessments
Ad valorem

Business and occupation
Alcoholic beverage
Hotel occupancy
Amusement

Licenses and permits
Investment income

Gain (loss) on disposals
Intergovernmental - state
Video lottery and gaming income
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues

Changein net positionbefore operating transfers
Operating transfers
Net change in net position

Net position - beginning - restated

Net position - ending

aXY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONTD)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Expenses

Charges for

Services

Program Revenues
Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Changes in Net Assets
Piimary Government

Governmental Business Type

Activities Activities

Component Unit
Operating

Grants and

Contributions

Capital

Grants and

Contributions Total Utility Board

$ 6,307,732 $ -0- $ 6,307,732 $ -0-
10,001,684 -0- 10,001,684 -0-

341,983 -0- 341,983 -0-
162,102 -0- 162,102 -0-

335 -0- 335 -0-

332,738 -0- 332,738 -0-
-0- 10,932 10,932 43,341
-0- -0- -0- ( 7,057)

120,588 -0- 120,588 -0-

213,842 -0- 213,842 -0-
376.826 -0- 376.826 -0-

17.857.830 10.932 17.868.782 36.284

597,378 83,695 681,073 2,752,250
( 323.9581 323.958 -0- -0-

273,420 407,653 681,073 2,752,250

( 5.627.8251 7.813.927 2.186.102 58.231.689

$f 5.354.4051 S 8.221.580 $ 2.867.175 $ 60.983.939

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this statement.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
FUND BALANCE SHEETS -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2014

Coal Other Total

General Severance Home Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash $ 5,701,036 $ 77,584 $ 40,159 $ 682,204 $ 6,500,983
Investments 2,403,680 -0- -0- 211,527 2,615,207
Receivables, net ofallowances:

Taxes 3,142,819 39,041 -0- -0- 3,181,860
Accounts 1,091,682 -0- -0- -0- 1,091,682
Loans -0- -0- 4,528,370 -0- 4,528,370
Grants 165,718 -0- -0- 1,047,601 1,213,319
Contributions 20,294 -0- -0- -0- 20,294

Due from other funds 17.926 -0- -0- ( 17.9261 -0-

TOTAL ASSETS $ 12.543.155 $ 116.625 $ 4.568.529 $ 1.923.406 % 19.151.715

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accoimts payable $ 423,936 $ 66,011 $ 1,550 $ 220,609 $ 712,106
Accrued compensation 217,584 -0- -0- -0- 217,584
Matured bond interest payable -0- -0- -0- 36,885 36,885
Accrued other post employment benefits 7,945,240 -0- -0- -0- 7,945,240
Unearned revenue 49,354 -0- -0- -0- 49,354
Due to other governmental units 6,559 -0- -0- -0- 6,559
Deferred revenue 908.770 -0- 4.500.188 976.958 6.385.916

Total liabilities 9.551.443 66.011 4.501.738 1.234.452 15.353.644

Fund Balances

Restricted -0- -0- -0- 362,922 362,922
Committed 1,018,869 -0- -0- -0- 1,018,869
Assigned 1,404,361 50,614 66,791 362,917 1,884,683
Unassigned 568.482 -0- -0- ( 36.8851 531.597

Total fund balance 2.991.712 50.614 66.791 688.954 3.798.071

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES $ 12,543,155 $ 116.625 $ 4.568.529 S 1.923,406 $ 19.151.715

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report andnotes areintegral parts of thisstatement.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE SHEETS -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014

Fund balance, fund level statement June 30, 2014

The total fund balanceofthe City ofParkersburg's governmental funds differ
from net assets of the governmental activities reported on the Statement of Net
Position as follows:

Someliabilities are not due and payable in the currentperiodand therefore,
are not reported in the fund level statements:

Accrued compensated absences

Obligations under capital lease

Net pension obligation payable

Notes payable

Capital assets, that areused in governmental activities andarepurchased or
constructed, the costs ofthose assets are reportedas expenditures in
governmental funds. However, the Statement ofNet Position includes those
assetsand their associatedaccumulated depreciation.

Somerevenues are reported as deferred in the governmental funds:

iDeferred revenue

Net Position ofgovernmental activities

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this statement.
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$ 3,798,071

( 682,826)

( 654,109)

(22,244,503)

( 1,769,000)

9,812,046

6.385.916

$ f 5.354.405^



CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Coal Other Total

General Severance Home Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

Revenues

Taxes and special assessments
Ad valorem $ 5,286,690 $ -0- $ -0- $ 22,396 $ 5,309,086
Business and occupation 10,033,061 -0- -0- -0- 10,033,061
Alcoholic beverage 341,983 -0- -0- -0- 341,983
Hotel occupancy 162,102 -0- -0- -0- 162,102
Amusement 335 -0- -0- -0- 335

Licenses and permits 332,738 -0- -0- -0- 332,738
Fines and forfeits 288,692 -0- -0- 31,620 320,312
Investment income 7,094 86 4,471 32,743 44,394
Donations and contributions 112,183 -0- -0- 2,620,287 2,732,470
Charges for services 7,869,580 -0- 27,650 121,075 8,018,305
Intergovernmental:

Federal 368,385 -0- 261,381 909,027 1,538,793
State 19,807 120,588 -0- -0- 140,395

Reimbursements 365,906 -0- -0- -0- 365,906
Video lottery and gaming income 213,842 -0- -0- -0- 213,842
Miscellaneous 154.821 -0- -0- 222.005 376.826

Total revenues 25.557.219 120.674 293.502 3.959.153 29.930.548

Expenditures
General government 4,499,666 62,612 119,968 -0- 4,682,246
Pubhc safety 11,643,896 -0- -0- 146,394 11,790,290
Highways and streets 5,762,761 -0- -0- 142,026 5,904,787
Health and sanitation 1,936,301 153,137 -0- -0- 2,089,438
Culture, recreation and social services 509,760 -0- -0- 12,385 522,145
Insurance and benefits paid 21,671 -0- -0- 2,788,673 2,810,344
Community development -0- -0- -0- 677,997 677,997
Economic development -0- -0- -0- 23,484 23,484
Debt service:

Principal 196,766 -0- -0- 83,000 279,766
Interest -0- -0- -0- 88.800 88.800
Total expenditures 24.570.821 215.749 119.968 3.962.759 28.869.297
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTD)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Coal Other Total

General Severance Home Governmental Governmental

Fund Fimd Fund Funds Funds

(Deficiency) excess of revenues (under)
over expenditures $ 986.398 %( 95.0751 $ 173.534 $f 3.6061 $ 1.061.251

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from debt service 196,766 -0- -0- -0- 196,766
Operating transfers in -0- -0- -0- 173,203 173,203
Operating transfers (out) ( 303.958^ ( 20.0001 -0- ( 173.2031 ( 497.1611

Total other financing sources (uses) ( 107.192^ ( 20.0001 -0- -0- ( 127.1921

Net change in flmd balances 879,206 (115,075) 173,534 ( 3,606) 934,059

Fund balances at beginning ofyear - restated 2.112.506 165.689 fl06.7431 692.560 2.864.012

Fimd balances at end of year $ 2,991,712 $ 50.614 S 66.791 S 688.954 $ 3.798.071

The accompanying notesare an integral part of the combining financial statements.

14



CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Net changein fund balances- total governmental funds $ 934,059

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement ofActivities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures whilegovernmental activities
report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets.
This is the amount bywhich depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the current period. (335,189)

Capital assets acquired by capital leases (196,766)

Some expenses reported in the Statement ofActivities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore arenot reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Increase in compensated absences ( 23,015)

Increase in net pension obligation payable (780,398)

Repayment ofobligationimder capital lease 505,920

Proceeds from obligation under capital lease (196,766)

Decrease in notes payable 83,000

Some revenues are reported as deferred in the governmental funds:

Change in deferred revenue 282.575

Change in Net Position ofGovernmental Activities $ 273.420

The accompanying independent auditor's report andnotes areintegral parts of this statement.
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ASSETS

Current Assets

CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30,2014

Business Type Activities
Primary Government

Parks and Memorial Parking

Recreation Bridge Garage Total

Component Unit

Utility Board

Cash $ 174,792 $ 1,071,425 $ 102,418 $ 1,348,635 $ 7,714,184
Investments -0- 1,234,577 108,979 1,343,556 -0-

Accounts receivables, net -0- -0- -0- -0- 1,649,111
Bond proceeds receivable -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Inventory -0- -0- -0- -0- 313,821
Prepaid expenses -0- -0- -0- -0- 62.374

Total current assets 174.792 2.306.002 211.397 2.692.191 9.739.490

Noncurrent Assets

Restricted assets -0- 2.573.592 77.178 2.650.770 16.202.019

Capital Assets
Land -0- 260,000 991,225 1,251,225 2,121,104
Building 3,100 -0- -0- 3,100 52,034,343
Structures and improvements 378,000 6,500,000 649,172 7,527,172 -0-
Leasehold improvements 54,411 -0- -0- 54,411 -0-

Machinery and equipment 261,122 724,438 79,100 1,064,660 117,902,614
Construction in progress -0- -0- -0- -0- 1,980,893
Less: Accumulated depreciation f695.4331 f5.230.7351 f 346.2621 f6.272.4301 ( 70.878.445)

Net capital assets 1.200 2.253.703 1.373.235 3.628.138 103.160.509

Total assets 175.992 7.133.297 1.661.810 8.971.099 129.102.018

Deferred outflows of resources

Unamortized bond discount -0- -0- 14.136 14.136 -0-
Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

-0- -0- 14.136 14.136 -0-

$ 175,992 $ 7.133,297 $ 1.675.946 $ 8.985.235 $ 129.102.018
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LIABILITIES

Business Type Activities
Primary Government

Parks and Memorial Parking

Recreation Bridge Garage Total

Component Unit

Utility Board

Current Liabilities (payable from current
assets)
Current portion obligation under capital lease $ 41,535 $ 48,811 $ -0- $ 90,346 $ -0-
Accounts payable 22,092 11,112 4,321 37,525 531,353
Due to primary government -0- -0- -0- -0- 16,025
Accrued compensation -0- 6,460 2,272 8,732 -0-
Compensated absences -0- -0- -0- -0- 210,162
Other post employment benefits payable -0- 54,521 113,635 168,156 -0-
Other current liabilities -0- -0- -0- -0- 100.154

Total current liabilities (payable fi-om current
assets) 63.627 120.904 120.228 304.759 857.694

Current Liabilities (payable from restricted
assets)
Revenue bonds payable -0- -0- 50,000 50,000 4,446,271
Customer deposits -0- -0- -0- -0- 463,024
Accmed interest payable -0- -0- -0- -0- 629.651

Total current liabilities (payable fi'omrestricted
assets) -0- -0- 50.000 50.000 5.538.946

Long-Term Liabilities (net of current portion)
Revenue bonds payable -0- -0- 215,000 215,000 58,558,750
Customer advances for construction -0- -0- -0- -0- 487,481
Accrued compensated absences -0- 2,951 5,470 8,421 29,806
Obligation imder capital lease 83,920 101,555 -0- 185,475 -0-
Accmed other post employment benefits -0- -0- -0- -0- 2,527,973
Unamoitized bond premiums -0- -0- -0- -0- 117.429

Total long-term liabilities 83.920 104.506 220.470 408.896 61.721.439

Total liabilities 147.547 225.410 390.698 763.655 68.118.079

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets -0- 2,103,337 1,108,235 3,211,572 40,038,059
Restricted for debt service -0- -0- 77,178 77,178 8,980,779
Restricted for repair and removal -0- 2,573,592 -0- 2,573,592 6,128,565
Unrestricted 28.445 2.230.958 99.835 2.359.238 5.836.536

Total net position fS 28,445 $ 6.907.887

00

<N
•ri

00
CN

00

CN
odi

X 60.983.939

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report andnotes areintegral parts of this statement.
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aXY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Rental fees

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Personal services

Contractual services

Administrative and general
Materials and supplies
Utilities

Depreciation
Maintenance

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss) income

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income

Interest and fiscal charges
Gain (loss) on sale ofcapital assets
Amortization ofbond discount

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Change in net position before capital contributionsand
operating transfers

Operating transfers in
Capital contributions
Change in net position

Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending

Business Type Activities
Primary Government

Parks and Memorial Parking

Recreation Bridge Garage Total

Component Unit

Utility Board

$ 99,489 $ 1,724,746 $ 105,985 $ 1,930,220 $ 16,261,691
-0- -0- 136.630 136.630 -0-

99.489 1.724.746 242.615 2.066.850 16.261.691

-0- 368,462 168,071 536,533 3,804,087
184,586 304,034 25,639 514,259 83,928

-0- -0- -0- -0- 622,786
41,134 23,606 99,074 163,814 611,047
57,297 19,797 9,328 86,422 1,018,432
11,715 102,217 28,088 142,020 3,873,348

1.433 597.186 728 599.347 1.612.437

296.165 1.415.302 330.928 2.042.395 11.626.065

096.6761 309.444 ( 88.3131 24.455 4.635.626

-0- 10,731 201 10,932 43,341
( 1,467) ( 1.764) ( 15,928) ( 19,159) ( 1,938,100)

-0- -0- -0- -0- ( 7,057)
-0- -0- ( 3.5331 ( 3.5331 -0-

( 1.4671 8.967 ( 19.2601 ( 11.7601 ( 1.901.8161

(198,143) 318,411 ( 107,573) 12,695 2,733,810

240,504 -0- 83,454 323,958 -0-

-0- -0- 71.000 71.000 18.440

42,361 318,411 46,881 407,653 2,752,250

( 13.9161 6.589.476 1.238.367 7.813.927 58.231.689

S 28.445 $ 6.907.887 1.285,248 $ 8.221.580 $ 60.983.939

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this statement.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Business Type Activities
Primary Government

Parks and Memorial Parking

Recreation Bridge Garage Total

Component Unit

Utility Board

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $ 99,489 $ 1,724,746 $ 242,615 $ 2,066,850 $ 16,390,082
Payments to suppliers (272,695) (1,007,690) (186,937) (1,467,322) ( 3,863,180)
Payments to employees -0- ( 305.7621 007.3921 ( 413.1541 ( 3.692.7441

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 073.2061 411.294 ( 51.7141 186.374 8.834.158

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing
Activities

Customer deposits -0- -0- -0- -0- 6.371

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities -0- -0- -0- -0- 6.371

Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities
(Increase) decrease in restricted assets -0- ( 189,605) ( 919) ( 190,524) -0-
Proceeds from revenue bonds -0- -0- -0- -0- 738,705
Operating transfers in (out) 240,504 -0- -0- 240,504 -0-
Capital contributions -0- -0- 71,000 71,000 -0-
Customer advances for construction -0- -0- -0- -0- ( 138,516)
Repayment ofrevenue bonds -0- -0- ( 50,000) ( 50,000) ( 4,230,789)
Repayment ofobligation under capital lease ( 41,482) ( 49,713) -0- ( 91,195) -0-
Acquisition ofcapital assets -0- -0- ( 73,291) ( 73,291) ( 2,907,928)
Interest expense ( 1.4671 f 1.7641 ( 15.9281 f 19.1591 ( 1.999.9331

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
related financing activities 197.555 ( 241.0821 ( 69.1381 ( 112.6651 ( 8.538.4611

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
(Increase) decrease in investments -0- ( 421,125) 73,114 ( 348,011) -0-
Interest income -0- 10.731 201 10.932 43.341

Net cash (used in) provided by investing
activities -0- ( 410.3941 73.315 ( 337.0791 43.341

Net increase (decrease) in cash 24,349 ( 240,182) ( 47,537) ( 263,370) 345,409

Cash at beginning ofyear 150.443 1.311.607 149.955 1.612.005 23.570.794

Cash at end ofyear $ 174.792 $ 1.071.425 S 102.418 $ 1.348,635 $ 23.916.203

19



CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTD)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Reconciliation ofoperating (loss) income to net cash
(used in) provided by operating activities
Operating (loss) income
Adjustmentsto reconcile operating (loss) income
to net cash (used in) provided by operatingactivities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable
Due to primary government
Accrued payroll
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued other post employment benefits
Other current liabilities

Net cash (used in) provided by operatingactivities

Business Type Activities
Primary Government

Parks and Memorial Parking

Recreation Bridge Garage

Component Unit

Total Utility Board

$(196,676) $ 309,444 $( 88,313) $ 24,455 $ 4,635,626

11,715 102,217 28,088 142,020 3,873,348

-0- -0- -0- -0- 128,391
-0- -0- -0- -0- ( 53,771)
-0- -0- -0- -0- 839

11,755 ( 6,415) 4,065 9,405 137,481
-0- -0- -0- -0- 611

-0- 4,611 1,235 5,846 -0-

-0- 598 ( 189) 409 18,626
-0- 839 3,400 4,239 74,353
-0- -0- -0- -0- 18.654

$fl73.206^ $ 411.294 $r 51,7141 $ $ 8.834.158

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this statement.
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aXY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Revenues
Taxes (including interest and

penalties)
Ad valorem

Business and occupation
Alcoholic beverage
Hotel occupancy
Gas and oil severance

Amusement

Total taxes

Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures

Interest

Donations

Reimbursements

Intergovernmental:
Federal

State

Gaming income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Health and sanitation

Culture and recreation
Social services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues
over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers (out)

Total other financing sources
(uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end of year

Variance

With FinalActual

Actual Budeet to Amounts Budget
Budeeted Amounts fBudeetarv GAAP GAAP Favorable

Orieinal Final Basis') Difference Basis ("Unfavorable)

5,001,815 $ 5,001,815 $ 5,388,293 $( 101,603) :5 5,286,690 $ 386,478
10,000,000 10,000,000 10,001,664 31,397 10,033,061 1,664

250,000 250,000 341,983 -0- 341,983 91,983
156,000 156,000 162,102 -0- 162,102 6,102
31,112 31,112 -0- -0- -0- ( 31,112)

355 355 335 -0- 335 ( 20)
15,439,282 15,439,282 15,894,377 ( 70,206) 15,824,171 455,095

240,033 240,033 382,093 ( 49,354) 332,739 142,060
7,185,000 7,185,000 7,818,098 51,482 7,869,580 633,098

226,000 226,000 280,062 8,630 288,692 54,062
17,145 17,145 2,614 -0- 2,614 ( 14,531)
28,000 96,250 51,116 -0- 51,116 ( 45,134)

304,500 304,500 310,905 55,000 365,905 6,405

611,000 611,000 433,750 ( 65,365) 368,385 ( 177,250)
92,750 92,750 31,538 ( 11,731) 19,807 ( 61,212)

238,555 238,555 213,842 -0- 213,842 ( 24,713)
99.288 117.849 398.537 f 46.952) 351.585 280.688

24.481.553 24.568.364 25.816.932 ( 128.496) 25.688.436 1.248.568

5,168,508 5,046,575 4,110,319 574,120 4,684,439 936,256
12,133,305 12,058,992 11,653,069 126,147 11,779,216 405,923
6,296,932 6,110,902 5,732,948 135,025 5,867,973 377,954
2,222,303 2,163,103 1,939,159 22,801 1,961,960 223,944

310,000 310,000 309,174 -0- 309,174 826
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

26.131.048 25.689.572 23.744.669 858.093 24.602.762 1.944.903

f 1.649.495) r 1.121.208) 2.072.263 ( 986.589) 1.085.674 3.193.471

-0- 138,153 138,153 -0- 138,153 -0-
( 240.505) ( 240.505) ( 240.504) -0- ( 240.504) 1

( 240.505) f 102.352) ( 102.351) -0- ( 102.351) 1

( 1,890,000) ( 1,223,560) 1,969,912 ( 986,589) 983,323 3,193,472

1.890.000 1.223.560 1.223.560 ( 757.005) 466.555 -0-

-0- S -0- S 3.193.472 $(1,743,594) $ 1.449.878 $ 3.193.472
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS (CONTD)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Explanation of Differences:
(1) The City budgets for capital expenditures as a current period expenditure rather than a capital

expenditure on the accrual basis ofaccounting.

(2) TheCity does notbudget foraccrued compensated absences payable in more than oneyear as is
required by the accrual basis ofaccounting.

(3) Theamount reported as "fund balance" on thebudgetary basis of accounting derives from thebasis
ofaccounting used in preparing the City'sbudget. This amountdiffers fromthe fundbalance
reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because of
the cumulative effect of transactions such as those described above.

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this statement.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

COAL SEVERANCE FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance

Actual With Final

Actual Budaet to Amounts Budeet
Budgeted Amounts (Budeetarv GAAP GAAP Favorable
Orieinal Final Basis) Difference Basis (Unfavorable

Revenues

Interest $ -0- $ -0- $ 86 $ -0- $ 86 $ 86
Intergovernmental;

State 115.000 115.000 120.588 -0- 120.588 5.588
Total revenues 115.000 115.000 120.674 iQz 120.674 5.674

Expenditures
General government -0- 65,689 62,612 -0- 62,612 3,077
Streets and transportation 115.000 215.000 173.137 -0- 173.137 41.863

Total expenditures 115.000 280.689 235.749 =Qz 235.749 44,940

Net change in fund balance -0- (165,689) (115,075) -0- (115,075) 50,614

Fund balance at beginning ofyear -0- 165.689 165.689 lOr 165.689 -0-

Fund balance at end ofyear S -0-

t

0
1

$ 50,614 $ ^ $ 50.614 $ 50.614

Explanation of Differences

The amount reported as "fund balance" on the budgetary basis ofaccounting derives from the basis ofaccounting used inpreparing the
City's budget. This amount differs from the fund balance as which would be derived from using the accrual basis ofaccounting.

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this statement.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF HDUCIARY NET ASSETS -

HDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2014

Pension

Trust Agency

Funds Funds Total

Assets

Cash

Investments

Receivables:

Accrued interest

Total assets

Liabilities

Refunds payable to others
Total liabilities

Net Assets

Held in trust

$ 950,994 $ 8,689 $ 959,683
20,908,639 -0- 20,908,639

50.282 -0- 50.282

21.909.915 8.689 21.918.604

:Q=
-0-

8.689

8.689

8.689

8.689

$ 21.909.915 $ $ 21.909.915

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts ofthis statement.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS -

HDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Additions

Contributions:

Employer
Employee
Insurance premium tax allocation
Other

Total contributions

Investment income:

Gain (loss) on investments
Interest and dividends

Total investment income

Miscellaneous income

Total additions

Deductions

General and administrative

Benefit payments
Total deductions

Net increase (decrease)

Net assets - beginning ofyear - restated

Net assets - end ofyear

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes areintegral parts of this statement.
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Pension

Trust

Funds

$ 3,047,739
427,324

1,159,207
=0r

4.634.270

1,729,468
426.036

2.155.504

902

6.790.676

144,277
4.667.125

4.811.402

1,979,274

19.930.641

$ 21.909.915



CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City ofParkersburg, West Virginia is incorporated under the provisionsofthe StateofWest
Virginia. The Cityis governed by an elected mayor andten member council andprovides the
following services as authorized by its charter: publicsafety(police and fire), streets, sanitation,
recreation, education, publicimprovements, planning and zoning, and general administrative
services.

Theremainder of theNotes areorganized to provide explanations, including required disclosures,
ofthe City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,2014.

TheCity's financial statements areprepared in accordance with generally accepted accoimting
principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accoimting Standards Board (GASH) is responsible for
establishing GAAP for stateandlocal governments through its pronouncements (Statements and
Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP andusedby the
City are discussed below.

During the yearended June 30,2014, the Cityadopted the following GASH statements:

GASB 65—Items PreviouslyReported as Assets andLiabilities —The purposeofthis
Statement was to establish accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as
deferred outflows ofresources or deferred inflows ofresources, certain items that were
previouslyreported as assets and liabilitiesand recognizes, as outflowsofresources or
inflows of resources, certain itemsthat werepreviously reported as assets and liabilities.

GASB 66 - Technical Corrections -2012 - an amendment ofGASB Statements No. 10and
No. 62- ThisStatement improves accounting andfinancial reporting by stateand local
governmental entitiesby resolvingconflictingguidancethat resulted fi'om the issuanceoftwo
pronouncements —Statement No. 54 —Fund Balance Reporting and GovernmentalFund
Type Definitions, andNo. 62- Codification of Accounting andFinancial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30,1989 FASB and AICPA Pronoimcements.

GASB 67 —Financial Reporting for Pension Plans —an amendment ofGASBStatement
No. 25- This Statement replaces therequirements of Statement No. 25,FinancialReporting
for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosuresfor Defined Contribution Plans and
No. 50,PensionDisclosures, as theyrelateto pension plans that are administered through
trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certainrequirements.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Basic Financial Statements —Government Wide Statements

The City's basicfinancial statements include bothgovemment-wide (reporting the Cityas a
whole) andfund financial statements (reporting the City's majorfunds). Boththe govemment-
wideand fund financial statements categorize primary activities as eithergovernmental or
business type. The City's policeand fireprotection, parks, publicworks and general
administrative services areclassified as governmental activities. The City's parks andrecreation,
memorial bridge and parking services are classified as business-type activities.

In thegovemment-wide Statement of NetPosition, boththegovernmental andbusiness-type
activities columns (a)arepresented on a consolidated basis by column, (b)andarereported on a
full accmal, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets andreceivables as
well as long-term debtandobligations. TheCity's netposition arereported in three parts - net
investment in capital assets; restricted net position; andunrestricted netposition. TheCityfirst
utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The govemment-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross andnet costof eachof the
City's functions andbusiness-type activities (police, fire, publicworks, etc.). The functions are
also supported by general government revenues (taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues,
fines, permits and charges, etc.). The Statement ofActivities reduces gross expenses (including
depreciation) by related program revenues, operating andcapital grants. Program revenues must
be directly associated with thefunction (police, public works, etc.) or a business-type activity.
Operating grants include operating-specific anddisoretionary (either operating or capital) grants
while the capitalgrants columnreflectscapital-specific grants.

Thenetcosts (byfunction orbusiness-type activity) arenormally covered bygeneral revenue
(taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income,etc.).

TheCity does notallocate indirect costs. Anadministrative service fee is charged bytheGeneral
Fund to theother operating funds thatis eliminated likea reimbursement (reducing the revenue
and expense in the General Fund) to recover thedirect costs of General Fund services provided
(finance, personnel, purchasing, etc.).

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.

27



CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability ofthe City as an entityand the change
in the City's net position resulting from the current year's activities.

(a) Reporting Entity
The City ofParkersburgis a municipal corporationgovernedby an elected mayor and ten
member council. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its
component units as required by generally accepted accounting principles.

The services provided by the government and accounted for within these financial
statements include law enforcement for the City, health and sanitation services, cultural
and recreation programs, and other governmental services.

The City complieswith GASB StatementNo. 61, "TheFinancial ReportingEntity:
Omnibus an Amendment ofGASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34". This statement
established standards for definingand reporting componentunits in the financial
statementsof the reportingentity. It defines component units as legallyseparate
organizations for which the component unit not only has a fiscal dependency on the
reportingentitybut also a financial benefit or burden relationship must be present
betweenthe reporting entityand the entitythat is to be included as a component unit. In
addition, an entity may be included as a component unit in the financial statementsof the
reporting entity, if the reportingentity's managementdeterminesthat it wouldbe
misleading to exclude them.

Blended Component Units

The City of Parkersburg has determined it has no blended component units.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Discretely presented component units are entities which are legally separate from the City,
but are financially accountable to the City,or whoserelationship with the Cityis such
that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
Because of the nature of services theyprovide and the City's ability to impose its will on
themor a financial benefit/burden relationship exists, the following component units are
discretely presented in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14 (as amended by GASB
Statement No. 39). The discretely presented component units are presented on the
government-wide statements.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

The Parkersburg Utility Board serves all the citizens of the City ofParkersburg and is
governedby a five member board comprisedof the mayor and four citizens appointedby
council. The rates for user charges and debt issuance authorizations are approvedby the
government's elected council.

Complete financial statements for this individual component unit may be obtained at the
entity's administrative offices at the following address:

Parkersburg Utility Board
125 19th Street

Parkersburg, West Virginia 26101

(b) Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements report informationon all the nonfiduciary
activitiesofthe government. For the most part, the effect ofintemal activityhas been
removed fi*om these statements. Government activities, whichnormallyare supportedby
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separatelyfi'om business-type
activities, which rely to significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement ofActivities demonstrates the degreeto whichthe direct expensesofa
given function or segmentare offset by programrevenues. Directexpensesare those that
are clearlyidentifiable with a specific function or segment. Programrevenuesinclude (1)
charges to customersor applicantswhose purchase, use or directlybenefit firom goods,
servicesor privilegesprovidedby a given function or segmentand (2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capitalrequirements ofa
particularfunctionor segment. Taxes and other items not properlyincludedamong
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are providedfor governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even thoughthe latter are excludedfi"om the governmental-wide
statements. Major individual fimds are reported as separate columns in the fund
statements.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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(c) Measurement Focus and Financial Statement Presentation - Government-Wide
Financial Statements

Funds are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each
category, in tum, is divided into separate "fund types". Governmental funds are used to
account for governmental activities, where the focus ofattention is on the providing of
services to the public as opposed to proprietary funds where the focus ofattention is on
recovering the cost ofproviding services to the public through service chargesor user
fees. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee or
agency capacity. The fund types used by the City ofParkersburg are described as
follows:

Govenunental Fund Types
GeneralFund: The General Fund is the general operating fund ofthe municipality. It
is used to accoimt for all financial resources except those required to be accounted
for in another fund.

SpecialRevenue Funds: Special Revenue Fimds are used to account for the proceeds
of specific revenue sources (other then special assessments, expendabletrusts, or
major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for capital purposes.

Debt Service Funds: The Debt Service Funds are used to account for proceeds of
specific revenue sources (other than special assessments, expendable trusts, or major
capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for debt retirement.

Proprietary Fund Types
Enterprise Funds: Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are
financed and operatedin a manner similar to privatebusiness enterprises - where the
intent ofthe goveming body is that the costs (expenses including depreciation)of
providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed
or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the goveming body has
decided that periodic determination ofrevenues eamed, expenses incurred, and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart ofthese notes.
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The City ofParkersburg reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund, Coal Severance Fund, and Home Fund

The Generalfund is the government's primaryoperatingfund. It accountsfor all financial
sourcesofthe generalgovernment, except those required to be accountedfor in another
fund.

The Coal Severance Taxfund, a special revenue fund, accounts for revenues and
expenditures Ifrom a severance tax placed on coal that is distributed to WestVirginia
municipalities.

The HOMEfund, a special revenue fund, accounts for the accumulation and disbursement
of federal entitlement funds, which are used to benefit low to moderate income families.

The government reports the following majorproprietary funds:

TheParks and RecreationJundaccounts for the operations of themimicipal park.

TheMemorial Bridgefund accounts for theoperations of themunicipal tollbridge.

TheParkingGaragefund accounts for theoperations of themunicipal parking facilities
available to all citizens.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

ThePension Trustfunds account fortheactivities of thePublic Safety Employees
Retirement System, which accumulates resources forpension benefit payments to
qualified publicsafety employees. These funds are accounted for in essentially the
same manner as the proprietary funds, using the same measurement focus and basis of
accounting.

ThQ AgencyJunds arecustodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do notpresent
results of operations or havea measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for
using the modified accrualbasis ofaccounting. These flmds are used to account for
assets thatthe Municipality of Parkersburg, West Virginia holds forothers in an agency
capacity.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is anintegral partof these notes.
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ThePermanentfunds are usedto reportresources that are legally restricted to the extent
thatonlyearnings, andnot principal, maybe used for purposes that support the
reporting government's programs, for the benefitof the government andits citizeniy.

(d) Funds - Fund Financial Statements
The accounts of the City are organized into funds, each ofwhich is consid^ed to be a
s^arate accounting entity. The major fund categories and account groups for the fund
financial statements are:

Governmental Fimd Types
Governmental funds are accountedfor using the currentfinancial resources

measurement focus. Onlycurrent assets and current liabilities are generally included
on theirbalance sheets. Theiroperating statements present sources anduses of
available resources during a given period.

GeneralFund: The General Fundis the general operating fund of the municipality. It
is usedto account for all financial resources except thoserequired to be accounted for
in another fund.

SpecialRevenue Funds: SpecialRevenueFimdsare used to accountfor the proceeds
of specific revenue sources (other than special assessments, expendable trusts, or
majorcapital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.

Capital Project Funds: Capital project funds account for the acquisition ofcapital
assets or construction of majorcapital projects not beingfinanced byproprietary or
fiduciary trust funds.

Debt Service Funds: The DebtService Funds areused to account for proceeds for
specific revenue sources (other thanspecial assessments, expendable trust, or major
capitalprojects) that are legallyrestrictedto expenditures for debt retirement.

Proprietaiy Fund Types
Proprietary funds are accounted for usingthe economic resources measurement focus;

the accounting objectives aredetermination of netincome, financial position, andcash
flows. All assets and liabilities associated with a proprietary fund's activities are
included on its balance sheet.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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Enterprise Funds: EnterpriseFunds are used to account for operations (a) that are
financed and operated in a mannersimilar to private business enterprises - where the
intent of the governing bodyis that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods and services to the general publicon a continuing basisbe financed
or recovered primarilythroughuser charges; or (b) where the governingbodyhas
decided that periodic determination ofrevenues earned, expenses incurred, and/ornet
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, publicpolicy, management control,
accountability,or other purposes.

Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary fimds account for assets heldby the Cityin a trustee or agency capacity.
Pension trust funds are accounted for in essentially the samemanner as proprietary
funds.

(e) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
Cashon handand deposits withbanking institutions eitherin checking or savings accounts
are presented as cash and cashequivalent in the accompanying financial statements.

State statutes authorize the government to invest in the State Investment Pool or the
Municipal Bond Commission or to invest suchfunds in the following classes of
securities: (a) obligations of the United States or anyagency thereof, (b) certificates of
deposit (which mature in less thanone year), (c) general anddirect obligations of the State
ofWestVirginia, (d) obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association, (e)
indebtedness secured by first lien deedof trust forproperty situated within the Stateif the
payment is substantially insured or guaranteed by ie federal government, (Q pooled
mortgage trusts(subject to limitations), (g) indebtedness of anyprivatecorporation that is
properly graded as in the toptwoor three highest rating grades, (h) interest earning
deposits which arefully insured or collateralized, and (i) mutual fimds registered with the
Security and Exchange Commission which have fund assets over three hundred million
dollars. State statute limitations concerningthe aforementioned investments include the
following:

(1) at no timecaninvestment portfolios consist of morethanseventy-five percent of
the indebtedness of anyprivate corporations nor canthe portfolio have overtwenty-
fivepercent of its portfolio consisting of the indebtedness of a private corporation's
debt which matures in less than one year.

(2) at no time maymore than nine percentof the portfolio be invested in securities
issued by a single private corporation or association.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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(3) at no time can more than sixty percentof the portfoliobe invested in equitymutual
funds.

Investment risk is categorized as follows:

Interest rate risk - The risk that changesin interestrates will adverselyaffect the fair
value ofan investment.

Credit risk - The risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investmentwill not
fulfill its obligations.

Custodial credit risk - Therisk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to
a transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value ofinvestment or collateral
securities that are in the possession ofan outsideparty.

(f) Receivables
All receivables are shown net ofallowance for uncollectibles.

(g) Capital Assets

The accounting and reporting treatmentapplied to capital assets and long-term liabilities
associated with a fund are determined by its measurement focus. The City ofParkersburg
records the purchaseofcapital assets used in governmental fund type operations as
expenditures in the governmental funds. The govemment-wide financial statements of
the City ofParkersburg are accounted for on a cost of serviceor "capital maintenance"
measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether current or
noncurrent) associatedwith their activity are included on the statementofnet position.

All proprietary funds and pension trust funds are accounted for on a cost ofservices or
"capital maintenance" measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities
(whethercurrentor noncurrent) associated with their activityare includedon the
statementofnet position. The reported fund equity(net total assets) is segregated into
contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund typeoperating
statements present increase (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net position.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof thesenotes.
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Depreciation ofall exhaustiblecapital assets is chargedas an expenseagainst operations.
Accumulated depreciation is reportedon the statements ofnet position. Depreciation has
been providedover the estimateduseful lives using the straight line method. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Governmental Funds

Buildings 40 years
Structure and improvements 40 - 50 years
Streets 20 years
Machinery and equipment 10-15 years
Vehicles 10—15 years
Office and computer equipment 10 years

Funds

Buildings 40 years
Structure and improvements 40 - 50 years
Machinery and equipment 10-15 years
Vehicles 10—15 years
Office and computer equipment 10 years

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Land None

Construction in progress None
Buildings and systems 10-50 years
Equipment 5-25 years

The City has defined capital assets with an initial cost ofover $10,000 and an estimated
useful life ofgreater than one year. Capitalassets donatedto the City are recorded at
their estimated fair value at the date of the donation.

The accompanjdng independent auditor's report is an integral partof thesenotes.
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(h) Basis ofAccounting

Fund Financial Statements

Modified Accnial Basis ofAccounting
The City used the modifiedaccnial basis ofaccounting for governmental fimd types.

The modified accnial basis ofaccounting recognizes revenues when both "measurable
and available." Measurable means that amount can be determined. Available means
collectiblewithin the currentperiod or soon enoughthereafterto pay current liabilities.
Also, under the modified accrual basis ofaccounting, expenditures are recorded when
the related fimd liability is incurred.

Major revenuesourcessusceptible to accrual include: business & occupationtax,
hotel/motel tax, wine tax, liquor tax, property taxes, fire service fees,
intergovernmental revenues, and investment income.

Accnial Basis ofAccounting
The accrual basis ofaccounting is used in proprietary fimd types and the pension trust

fimds. The accrual basisof accoimting recognized revenues whenearned. Expenses
are recordedwhen incurred. Plan member contributions to the pension trust fimds are
recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to
the plan are recognized when due and the City has made a formd commitment to
provide the contributions. Benefits andrefimds arerecognized whendueand payable
in accordance with the terms ofthe plan.

Govetument-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements arereported usingthe economic resources
measurement focus and the accrualbasis ofaccounting, as are the proprietaryfimds
(when appropriate) and fiduciary fimd financial statements. Revenues are recorded
whenearned and expenses arerecorded whena liability is incurred, regardless of the
timingof related cashflows. Property taxesare recognized as revenues in the yearin
which they are levied. Grants and similaritems are recognized as revenues as soon as
all eligibilityrequirements imposedby the providerhave been met.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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Governmental fund financial statements are reportedusing the current financial
resourcesmeasurementfocus and the modified accrualbasis ofaccounting. Revenues
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when theyarecollectible within thecurrent period or soon
enough thereafter to payliabilities ofthe current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if theyare collected within 60 days after
theendof thecurrent fiscal year. Expenditures generally arerecorded when a liability
is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debtservice expenditures, as well
as expenditures related to compensated absences arerecorded onlywhen payment is
due.

Taxes,grantsand interestassociated with the current fiscal periodare all considered to
be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues ofthe currentfiscal
period. Allother revenue items areconsidered tobe measurable andavailable only
when cash is received by the government.

(i) Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
Allmumcipalities wifiiin West Virginia, arerequired bystatute to prepare annual budgets

(levy estimates) on prescribed forms for the General and Coal Severance Fimds and
submit these for approval to the State TaxCommissioner. These budgets areprepared in
accordance with the following procedures:

1. Thegoverning bodyof the municipality is required to holda meeting
or meetingsbetweenthe seventh and twenty-eighth daysofMarch
to ascertain the financial conditionofthe municipality and to
prepare the levyestimate (budget) for the fiscal yearcommencing
July 1.

2. The budget is then forthwith submitted to the State Tax
Commissioner for approval.

3. The governing bodythenreconvenes on the thirdTuesday in April to
hearobjections fi-om thepublicandto formally laythe levy.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.

37



CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Revisions are authorized onlywith the prior writtenapproval ofthe StateTax
Commissioner. Thebudgeted amounts reflected in the accompanying financial
statements are such approved amounts.

A) Unused appropriations forall of theabove annually budgeted funds lapse at the
year end.

B) The budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized
amounts as revised during the year.

(j) Committed - Fund Financial Statements
Encumbrance accounting is used for the General Fundand special revenuefunds.
Encumbrances are recorded when purchase orders are issued but are not considered
expenditures imtil liabilities for payments areincurred. Encumbrances arereported asa
reservation of fund balance on thebalance sheet. Encumbrances do not lapse at the close
of thefiscal year but arecarried forward as reserved fund balance until liquidated.

(k) Inventories
Themunicipality considers inventories of materials andsupplies as expended at the timeof
purchase therefore, theydo not appear in the municipality's financial statements.

(1) Amortization
Debtdiscount on bondsis amortized on the straight-line method from the dateof issuance
to the dateof maturity. Amortization of debtdiscount for fiscal yearended June30,2014
was $3,533.

Discretely presented component unit
Debtdiscount and expense on bonds is amortized on the straight-line method from the

date of issuance to the date ofmaturity.

(m) Compensated Absences
It is the government'spolicy to pamit employeesto accumulateearned but unused
vacation and sickpaybenefits. The liability for compensated absences reported in the
government-wide financial statements consistsofunpaid accumulated and sick leave
balances. Sick leave balances pertain to employees that were hired priorto 1980 andare
limited to 60 hours. All vacation and allowable sickpaybenefits are accrued when
incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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Discretely presented component unit
It is the Utility Board's current policy to permit employees to accumulate earned or unused

vacation benefits. Vested or accumulated vacation andpreviously accumulated sick
leave is recorded as an expense anda liability in proprietary fimds as thebenefits accrue
to employees.

All other eligible employees are covered xmder the West Virginia Public Employee
Retirement System due to theCity's electing to be a participating public employer.

(n) Pension Plans
TheCity provides separate defined benefit pension plans foruniformed police and fire
department personnel. It is the City'spolicyto fimd the normal cost and amortization of
the unfimded prior service cost.

All eligible employees of the City are covered under the West Virginia Public Employee
Retirement System due to theCity's electing tobe a participating public employer.

Discretely presented component unit
TheUtility Board maintains a defined benefit pension planthatwas discontinued when the
Utility Board became a participating member of theWest Virginia Public Employee
Retirement System. The plan is administered only forthose employees that qualified for
theplan and nocurrent employee may contribute orreceive benefits ofthe plan.

(o) Use ofEstimates
The preparation of financial statements inconformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to makeestimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts ofassets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at thedate of thefinancial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues andexpenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
fi-om those estimates.

(p) Equity Classification
Effective July 1, 2010, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 54 "Fund Balance Reporting
and GovernmentalFimdType DeMtions," which establishesnew standardsfor
accounting andfinancial reporting thatareintended to improve theclarity and
consistency of thefund balance information provided to financial report users. The
classifications arebased primarily on theextent to which theCity is bound to honor
constraints on thespecific purposes forwhich the amounts in those flmds can be spent.
Fundbalances are reported in the following categories:

The accompanying independent auditor's report is anintegral part of these notes.
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Net Position Classifications:

GASB 63—Financial Reporting ofDeferred Outflows ofResources, Deferred Inflows
ofResources, and Net Position - divided net position for Govemment-wide net
position into three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets —consist of thehistorical costof capital assets less
accumulated depreciation andless anydebtthatremains outstanding that wasused
to finance those assets plus deferred outflows ofresources less deferred inflows of
resources related to those assets.

b. Restricted netposition —consists of netposition that is restricted bytheAuthority's
creditors (forexample through debtcovenants), by the state enabling legislation
(through restrictions on shared revenues), by grantors (both federal and state), and by
other contributors.

c. Unrestricted - all othernet position is reported in this category

GASB Statement No. 54—"Fund BalanceReporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions" —divided fund balance for fund level intofive components:

a. Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spenteitherbecause theyarein a
nonspendable form or because theyare legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

b. Restricted —Amounts fiiat canbe spent onlyforspecific puiposes because of the
City's code, stateor federal laws, or externally imposed conditions bygrantors or
creditors.

c. Committed —Amounts that canbe used onlyforspecific purposes determined by a
formal action by the City's council.

d. Assigned - Amounts that are designed bytheCity's council for a particular purpose
but arenot spendable until thereis a majority vote approval bythe Citj^s council.

e. Unassigned —All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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(q) Interfund Activity
Interfiind activity is reported as eitherloans, services provided, reimbursements or
transfers. Loans arereported as interfund receivables andpayables as appropriate andare
subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or
near marketrates, are treatedas revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements
are when one fund incurs a cost,charges the appropriate benefiting fund andreduces its
related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers.
Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds arenetted aspart of the
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

(r) Restricted Assets
Certain proceeds of the enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain proceeds set

aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statement ofnet assets
because their use is limited by applicablebond covenants.

(s) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are shown net of allowance for doubtful accounts of$-0-.

Discretely presented component unit
Accounts receivable are rq)orted net ofan estimated allowance for doubtful accounts.

Management establishes an allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts receivable
based on historical collection experience and management's evaluation ofthe
collectabilityofoutstanding accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts
was $734,985 as ofJune 30,2014.

(t) Operating and Nonoperating Revenue
TheCityreports all revenues produced by thesystem as operating revenues including fees,
penalties andbasiccharges for services. All otherrevenues are reported as nonoperating
revenue including contributions, grants, and interest income.

2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The govCTnmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance —total
governmental funds andnet position —governmental activities as r^orted on the govemment-
wide stat^ent ofnetposition. Thegovernmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances —total
governmental fund and changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the
govCTnment —wide statement ofactivities. The individual elements ofthose reconciliations are
included with the statements.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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3. Deposits and Investments

The City reporting entity considers hi^y liquid investments with anoriginal maturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Exceptions include theCity of
Parkersburg, West Virginia's Policemen's Pension and ReliefFund and the Firemen's Pension and
ReliefFund which classify only cash ascash equivalents inorder to appropriately report
investment activity.

Deposits
It is the City's policy for deposits tobe 100% secured bycollateral valued atmarket orpar,
whichever is lower, less the amount of theFederal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance.
The City's deposits are categorized togive anindication ofthelevel ofrisk assumed bythe City
at June 30,2014. The categories are described as follows:

Category 1- Insured orcollateralized with securities held bythe entity orbyitsagent inthe entity's
name.

Category2 - Collateralized with securities heldby thepledging financial institution's trust
department or agent in the entity's name.

Category 3 - Uncollateralized.

Non-Polled Deposits

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds
Permanent Funds

Enterprise Funds

Fiduciary Funds

Bank Catesorv Carrvine

Balance i 2 3 Amount

5,777,057 $ 334,540 $ 5,442,517 $ -0- $ 5,701,036
770,244 185,450 584,794 -0- 758,049

41,898 6,933 34,965 -0- 41,898
1.391.997 224.326 1.168.671 =Qz 1.348.635

7.981.196 $ 751.249 $ 7.229.947 $ $ 7.849.618

962.786 $ 258.714 $ 704.072 $ =0= $ 959.683

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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Investments

Investment pools are underthe custodyof the City. Investing is performed in accordance with
investment policies complying withState Statutes andtheCityCharter. Pooled funds maybe
investedin the State Investment Pool or the Municipal Bond Commission for investment
purposes, or invested in the following classes of securities: Commercial paperrated A-1 by
Standard & Poor's Corporation or P-1 by Moodys Commercial PaperRecord, bankers'
acceptances, repurchase agreements andreverse repurchase agreements. The pension trust fund
is also authorized to invest in corporate bondsratedAA or betterby Standard & Poor's
Corporation or AA or better by Moodys Bond Rating.

Statestatutes authorize thegovernment to invest in the State Investment Pool or theMunicipal
Bond Commission or to invest suchfunds in the following classes of securities: Obligations of
the UnitedStatesor anyagency thereof, certificates ofdeposit(whichmaturein less than one
year), generaland direct obligations ofthe state ofWest Virginia; obhgationsofthe federal
national mortgage association; indebtedness secured by first lien deed of trusts forproperty
situated withinthis state if the payment is substantially insured or guaranteed by the federal
government; pooledmortgage trusts (subjectto limitations); indebtedness ofanyprivate
corporation that is properly graded as in the top twoor threehighest ratinggrades; interest
earning deposits whichare fullyinsured or collateralized; andmutual funds registered withthe
S.E.C. which have fund assets over three hundred million dollars.

State statute limitations concerning the aforementioned investments include the following: at no
time can investment portfolios consistof more than seventy-five percentofthe indebtedness of
anyprivate corporation nor can the portfolio haveovertwenty-five percent ofits portfolio
consisting ofthe indebtedness ofa private corporation's debt which matures in less than one
year; at no time may morethan nine percentof theportfolio be invested in securities issuedby a
singleprivate corporation or association; and at no timecan morethansixtypercent of the
portfolio be invested in equity mutual funds.

Municipal PensionFunds are governedas to typeofinvestments by West VirginiaCode
§8-22-22. Pension funds arepermitted to invest in all of the above mentioned types of
investments with the exceptions of(1) Direct and generalobligations ofthe state and (2) Pooled
mortgage trusts. Additionally, pension funds are permitted to invest fimds in the following
categoriesofinvestments: (1) Repurchase agreements and (2) Common stock, securities
convertible into commonstocks, or warrantsand rights to purchasessuch securities. Pension
funds have different rules concerning the purchase ofmarketable debt securities.

The accompanying independent auditor's reportis an integral partof these notes.
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Thefollowing restrictions apply only to pension portfolio's andareseparate and distinct from the
Imutations mentioned above: (1)fixed income securities which areissued byone issuer (with
theexception of theUnited States government) arenottoexceed ten percent of thetotal assets
ofthe total pension fimd assets; and (2) atnotime can the equity portion of theportfolio exceed
fifty percent of the total portfolio.

The City's investments are categorized togive an indication of the level ofrisk assumed bythe
City at June 30,2014. The categories are described as follows:

^Category 1- Insured or registered, or securities held bytheCity or its agent in theCity's name.

Categoiy 2 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by thecounterparty's trust
department or agent in the City's name.

Categoiy 3 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held bythecounterparty, or byits trust
department or agentbut not in the City's name.

Category Market Unrealized
Tvne ofInvestments 1 2 3 Value Cost Gain/fLoss'l

Money market $ 1,548,303 $ -0- $ -0- $ 1,548,303 $ 1,548,303 $ -0-
Certificates ofdeposit 2,759,495 -0- -0- 2,759,495 2,759,495 -0-
Corporate stocks 152.743 =Qr 152.743 86.111 66,632

$ 4.460.541 $ ^ $ ^ 4,460,541 4,393,909 $ 66,632

West Virginia Consolidated Fund 2,071,814 1,343,556
West Virginia Bond Commission 77.178 -0-

Total investments $ 6,609,533 $ 5.737.465

Reported on Statement ofNet Position as:
divestments

Restricted assets

Total

$ 3,958,763
2.650.770

$ 6.609.533

The accompanying independent auditor's report is anintegral part of these notes.
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Credit Risk Rating

Standard & MoodVs

Fair Poor's and Investment
Tvoe ofInvestments Value Fitch Services

Money market $ 1,548,303 N/A N/A
Certificates ofdeposit 2,759,495 N/A N/A
Corporate stocks 152,743 N/A N/A
WV Consolidated fund 2,071,814 N/A N/A
WV Bond Commission 77.178 N/A N/A

$ 6.609.533

Certificates ofdeposit

Fiduciary Funds

Fair Value Less Than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10

$ 2.759.495 $ 2.632.179 $ 127.316 $ $ zQz

Category Market Uruealized
Tvoe of Investments 1 2 3 Value Cost Gain ILossl

Money market $ 1,271,270 $ -0- $ -0- $ 1,271,270 $ 1,271,270 $ -0-
Mutual funds 795,936 -0- -0- 795,936 501,110 294,826
Corporate bonds 5,105,231 -0- -0- 5,105,231 4,253,321 851,910
Corporate stocks 9,995,521 -0- -0- 9,995,521 7,992,224 2,003,297
U.S. Treasury obligations 3.740.681 =0; -0- 3.740.681 3.263.093 477.588

$ 20.908,639 $ $ -0- $ 20,908,639 S 17.281.018 $ 3.627.621

Fiduciary Funds
Credit Risk Rating

Standard & MoodVs

Fair Poor's and Investment

Tvpe of Investments Value Fitch Services

Money market $ 1,271,270 N/A N/A
Municipal funds 795,936 AAA AAA

Corporate bonds 5,105,231 BBB+ -AAA A-AAA

Corporate stocks 9,995,521 N/A N/A
U.S. Treasury obligations 3.740.681 AAA AAA

$ 20.908.639

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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Interest Rate Risk

As ofJune 30,2014, the City had the following cash and investments and maturities exposed to
interest rate risk.

Fiduciaiy Funds

Type ofInvestments Fair Value Less Than 1 1-5 6-10 Mnrftthan in

Coiporate bonds $ 5,105,231 $ 426,767 $ 3,574,107 $ 1,020,881 $ 83,476
U.S. Treasury obligations 3.740.681 197.742 1.665.644 1.019.355 857.940

S 8.845.912 $ 624.509 $ 5.239.751 $ 2.040.236 $941.416

Discretely Presented Component Unit

BankDeposits and Investments

The BTI has adopted an investment policy in accordance with the "Uniform Prudent Investor
Act." The"prudent investor rule" guides those with responsibility forinvesting themoney for
others. Such fiduciaries must actasa prudent person would be expected to act, withdiscretion
and intelligence, to seekreasonable income; preserve capital; and, in general, avoid speculative
investments. The BTI's investmentpolicy is to invest assets in a manner that strives for
maximum safety, provides adequate liquidity to meet alloperating requirements, andachieves
the highest possible investment retum consistent witii theprimary objectives ofsafety and
liquidity. TheBTI recognizes thatrisk, volatility, and thepossibility of lossin purchasing
power are present to some degree in all types ofinvestments. Due to the short-term nature of
BTI's Consolidated Fund, the BTIbelieves that it is imperative to review andadjust the
investment policy in reaction to interest ratemarket fluctuations/trends on a regular basisand
has adopted a formal reviewschedule. Investment policies havebeen established for each
investment pool and account of the BTI's Consolidated Fund.

WV Government Monev Market Pool - Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issueror othercounterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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For the year ended June 30,2014, the WV Government Market Pool has been rated AAAm by
Standard &Poor's. Afund rated "AAAm" has extremely strong capacity to maintain principal
stability and to limit exposure to principal losses due tocredit, market, and/or liquidity risks.
"AAAm" is thehighest principal stability fund rating assigned byStandard &Poor's.

The BTI limites the exposure to credit risk inthe WV Government Money Market Pool by
lumting the pool to U.S. Treasury issues, U.S. government agency issues, money market funds
investing inU.S. Treasury issues and U.S. government agency issues, and repurchase
agreements collateralized byU.S. Treasury issues and U.S. government agency issues. The
pool must have at least 15% of its assets in U.S. Treasury issues.

The following table provides information on the credit ratings ofthe WV Government Money
Market Pool's investments as ofJune 30,2014.

Security Tvoe
Credit Ratings Carrvine Value Percent of

MoodVs S&P fin Thousands") Pool Assets

U.S. agency bonds Aaa AA+ $ 12,453 5.21%
U.S. treasury notes* Aaa AA+ 37,016 15.49
U.S. treasury bills* P-1 A-1+ 3,000 1.26
U.S. agency discount notes P-1 A-1+ 122,056 51.08
Money market funds Aaa AAAM 29 0.01
Repurchase agreements (imderlying securities):

U.S. agency notes Aaa AA+ 64.400 26.95

$ 238,954 100.00%

*U.S. Treasury issues are explicitly guaranteed bytheUnited States government and arenot
subject to credit risk.

As ofJxme 30,2014, the WV Government Money Market Pool investments had atotal carrying
value of$238,954,000, ofwhich the Utility Board's ownership represents approximately 3.76%

WV Government Monev Market Pool - Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is therisk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. All of the BTI's Consolidated Fundpools and accounts are subjectto interestrate
risk.

The accompanying independent auditor's report isan integral part ofthese notes.
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The overall weighted average maturity(WAM) ofthe investments ofthe WV Government
Money Market Pool cannot exceed 60 days. Maximum maturity of individual securities cannot
exceed 397days from date of purchase, except forgovernment floating ratenotes, which can
beupto 762 days. The following table provides information ontheweighted average
maturities forthevarious asset types in theWVGovernment Money Market Pool as of
June 30, 2014.

Carrying
Value WAM

(In Thousands) (Davsl

Security type
Repurchase agreements
U.S. treasury notes
U.S. treasury bills
U.S. agency discoxmt notes
U.S. agency bonds
Money market funds

64,400 1

37,016 67

3,000 73

122,056 45

12,453 40

29 1

238.954 37

WV Government Monev Market Pool - Other Investment Risks

Other investment risks caninclude concentration of credit risk, custodial credit risk, andforeign
currency risk. None of theBTI's Consolidated Fimd's investment pools or accounts is exposed
to these risks as described below.

Concentration ofcreditrisk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a BTI's
Consolidated Fimd pool or account's investment in a single corporate issuer. TheBTI
investment policy prohibits thosepools andaccounts permitted to hold corporate securities
from investing more than 5%of theirassets in anyonecorporate name or onecorporate issue.

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event ofthe failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the BTI will not be able to recover the value of investment or
collateral securities thatarein thepossession of an outside party. Repurchase agreements are
required to be collateralizedby at least 102% of their value, and the collateral is held in the
name of theBTI. TheBTI or its agent does notrelease cash or securities until thecounterparty
delivers its side ofthe transaction.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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Foreign currency riskis therisk thatchanges in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair
value of aninvestment ora dq)osit. None of theBTI's Consolidated Fund's investment pools
oraccounts hold interest in foreign current or interests valued in foreign currency.

Requests foradditional financial information pertaining to theBTImaybe sentto theChief
Financial Officer, WestVirginia Board ofTreasury Investments, 1900 Kanawha Boulevard
East, Charleston, WV 25305.

Fiduciarv fund

Type of Fair

Investments Value Cost

Government agency bonds $ 589,738 $ 619,235
Government backed/CMO securities 195,169 204,464
Certificates ofdeposit 262.848 266.735

$ 1.047.755 $ 1.090.434

Credit risk

State law limits investments. It is theUtility Board's policy that noinvestment bepurchased
which does not conform to the Stateof WestVirginia Code. As of June30,2014, the
following fiduciary fund's investments wererated using Standard & Poor's andFitch and
Moodys Investment Services.

Standard & Moody's
Type of Fair Poor's and Investment

Investments Value Fitch Services

Government agencies bond $ 589.738 AA+ AAA

Interest rate risk

The accompanying independent auditor's report is anintegral part ofthese notes.
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AsofJune 30,2014, the fiduciary fund had thefollowing investments and maturities exposed to
interest rate risk.

Maturities fin Yearsl
Tvoe of Investments Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10

US Treasury obligations $ 589,738 $ -0-

1

o
1

o
1

$ 589,738
Government backed/CMO

securities 195,169 -0- -0- -0- 195,169
Certificates ofdeposit 262.848 =Qz 49.421 50.814 162.613

S 1,047,755 $ ^ $ 49.421 S 50.814 $ 947.520

4. Property Taxes

Thetaxes onreal property andthe interest and other charges upon such taxes attach asan
enforceable lien onthefirst day of July. There is no lien denominated assuch onpersonal
property; however, statutes provide that thesheriffof a county maydistrain fordelinquent taxes
any goods and chattelsbelonging to a person assessed. All current taxes assessed on real and
personal property may be paid in two installments; thefirst installment is payable on September
first of theyear forwhich the assessment is made, andbecome delinquent on October first, and the
second installment is payable on the first dayof the following March and becomes delinquent on
April first. Taxes paid on or before thedatewhen theyarepayable, including bothfirst andsecond
installments, aresubject to a discount of two and one-halfpercent. If taxes arenotpaid onor
before thedate onwhich they become delinquent, including bothfirst and second installments,
interest at therateofninepercent annum is added fi"om thedate they become delinquent until paid.

All municipalities within thestate areauthorized to levy taxes notin excess of thefollowing
maximum levies per $100of assessed valuation: On ClassI property, twelve and five-tenths cents
(12.50); on Class Uproperty, twenty-five cents (25.00); andon Class IVproperty, fifty cents
(50.00). In addition, municipalities may provide foran election to layan excess levy, therates not
to exceed fifty percent of such authorized maximum levies, provided thatat least sixty percent of
the voters cast ballots in favor ofthe excess levy.

The levyrates levied by the Cityof Parkersburg, WestVirginia, per $100of assessed valuation for
each class ofproperty for the fiscal year ended June 30,2014 were as follows:

Class ofPronertv

Class II

Class rv

Assessed Valuations

For Tax Purposes Expense

$ 405,933,602
518,067,213

Current

25.000
50.000

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.

50

Excess

11.320
22.640



aXY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

5. Capital Assets and Capital Assets Net of Depreciation

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,2014 was as follows:

Beginmng
Balance Additions Retirements

Ending

Balance

$ 728.223 $ ^ $ lOz $ 728.223

Governmental Activities
Nondepreciable capital assets

Land

Depreciable capital assets
Buildings 13,259,595 -0- -0- 13,259,595
Streets 2,566,681 33,489 -0- 2,600,170
Machinery and equipment 10.098.648 359.328 282.306 10.175.670

Totals at historic^ cost 25.924.924 392.817 282.306 26.035.435
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Buildings 7,665,796 216,316 -0- 7,882,112
Streets 1,364,824 130,009 -0- 1,494,833
Machinery and equipment 7.278.526 578.447 282.306 7.574.667

Total accumulated depreciation 16.309.146 924.772 282.306 16.951.612

Total depreciable capital assets, net 9.615.778 1r531.955) -0- 9.083.823

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 10.344.001 $f531.9551 S -0- S 9-812-046

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Business-Type Activities

Parks andRecreation

Depreciable capital assets
Buildings $ 3,100 $ -0- $ -0- $ 3,100
Structures and improvements 378,000 -0- -0- 378,000
Leasehold improvements 54,411 -0- -0- 54,411
Machinery and equipment 261.122 -0- -0- 261.122

Totals at historical cost 696.633 -0- -0- 696.633
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Buildings 3,100 -0- -0- 3,100
Structures and improvements 370,050 7,950 -0- 378,000
Leasehold improvements 51,521 3,765 -0- 55,286
Machinery and equipment 259.047 -0- -0- 259.047

Total accumulated depreciation 683.718 11,715 =Qz 695.433

Total depreciable capital assets, net 12.915 tl 1.7151 rQi 1.200

Parks and recreation capital assets, net sjzm $(11,715) $ ^ $ 1.200

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.

51



CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Beeinning Ending

Balance Additions Retirements Balance

MemorialBridge
Nondepreciable capital assets

Land $ 260.000 $ -0- $ ;0; $ 260.000

Depreciable capital assets
Structures and improvements 6,500,000 -0- -0- 6,500,000
Machinery and equipment 724.438 -0- -0- 724.438

Totals at historical cost 7.224.438 -0- -0- 7.224.438
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Structures and improvements 4,753,125 81,250 -0- 4,834,375
Machinery and equipment 375.393 20.967 -0- 396.360

Total accumulated depreciation 5.128.518 102.217 =0z 5.230.735

Total depreciable capital assets, net 2.095.920 fl02.2171 =0; 1.993.703

Memorial Bridge capital assets, net $ 2.355.920 $tl02.217^ $ ^ $ 2.253.703

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Retirements Balance

ParkingFund
Nondepreciable capital assets

Land $ 991.225 $ -0- $ rOr $ 991.225

Depreciable capital assets
Structures and improvements 505,718 143,454 -0- 649,172
Machinery and equipment 65.809 13.291 -0- 79.100

Totals at historical cost 571.527 156.745 -0- 728.272
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Structures and improvements 289,129 20,854 -0- 309,983
Machinery and equipment 29.045 7.234 -0- 36.279

Total accumulated depreciation 318.174 28.088 =0; 346.262

Total depreciable capital assets, net 253.353 128.657 =Qi 382.010

Parking Fund capital assets, net $ 1.244,578 $ 128.657 $ ^ $ 1.373.235

The accompanying independent auditor's report isanintegral part of these notes.
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Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Total Business-Type Activities

Nondepreciable capital assets
Land $ 1.251.225 $ -0- $ ::0z $ 1.251.225

Depreciable capital assets
Buildings 3,100 -0- -0- 3,100
Structures and improvements 7,383,718 143,454 -0- 7,527,172
Leasehold improvements 54,411 -0- -0- 54,411
Machinery and equipment 1.051.369 13.291 -0- 1.064.660

Totals at historical cost 8.492.598 156.745 -0- 8.649.343

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Buildings 3,100 -0- -0- 3,100
Structures and improvements 5,412,304 110,054 -0- 5,522,358
Leasehold improvements 51,521 3,765 -0- 55,286
Machinery and equipment 663.485 28.201 -0- 691.686

Total accumulated depreciation 6.130.410 142.020 :Qz 6.272.430

Total depreciable capital assets, net 2.362.188 14.725 =Qi 2.376.913

Business Type Activities capital assets, net $ 3.613.413 $ 14.725 $ ^ S 3.628.138

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General government
Public safety
Hi^ways and streets
Health and Sanitation

Culture and recreation

Total depreciation expense

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Discretely Presented Component Unit

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,2014, was as follows:

Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Land

Construction in progress
Total nondepreciable capital

assets

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and systems
Equipment
Total depreciable capital assets

at historical costs

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and systems
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Depreciable capital assets, net

Capital assets, net

Transfers

Balance Additions Retirements Net Balance

2,120,354 $ 1,498 $ -0- $ ( 748) $ 2,121,104
6.532.277 -0- -0- (4.551.3841 1.980.893

8.652.631 1.498 -0- (4.552.1321 4.101.997

52,003,159 102,223 -0- ( 71,039) 52,034,343
110.352.272 2.971.498 t44.3271 4.623.171 117.902.614

162.355.431 3.073.721 (44,3271 4.552.132 169.936.957

17,490,025 1,095,992 -0- -0- 18,586,017
49.552.342 2.777.356 (37.270) -0- 52.292.428

67.042.367 3.873.348 (37,270) -0- 70.878.445

95.313.064 ( 799.6271 ( 7.0571 4.552.132 99.058.512

103.965.695 798.1291 % ( 7,0571 S -0- $ 103.160.509

Depreciation expense was $3,873,348 for the year ended June 30, 2014.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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6. Long-Term Debt

Long-term liabilityactivity for Governmental Activities for the yearended Jime30,2014 was as
follows:

Beginning

Balance Additions Reductions

Ending

Balance

Amounts

Due Within

One Year

Amounts

Due After

One YearGovernmentalActivities

Notes Payable
US Dept. ofHUD

Other Long-Term Debt
Compensated absences
Obligation under capital lease
Net pension obligation payable

Total other long-term debt

Governmental activities long-
term liabilities

Notes Payable:

$ 1.852.000 $ :0r $ 83.000 $ 1.769.000 $ 86.000 $ 1.683.000

659,811
963,263

21.464.105

23.087.179

23,015
196,766
780.398

-0-

505,920
-0-

1.000.179 505.920

$ 24.939.179 $ 1.000.179 $ 588.920 $ 25.350.438 $ 550.577 $ 24.799.861

682,826
654,109

22.244.503

23.581.438

49,058
415,519

rOr
464.577

633,768
238,590

22.244.503

23.116.861

United States Department ofHousing and Urban Development - Series 2014A
This note was authorized to provide for the Point Park Public ImprovementsProject. The note
was issued in the amountof$2,150,000and bears a variable rate of interest throughout the
repayment ofthe loan. The loan is secured by future entitlement funds from the Community
Development Block Grant and annual toll revenues. Interestonly paymentsare to be made by
the first ofFebruaryofeach year the loan is outstanding while paymentsofprincipal and
interest are to be made by the first ofAugust ofeach year the loan is outstanding.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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The outstanding debt maturities of this note are as follows:

Date Principal Interest Total

August 1,2014 $ 86,000 $ 44,262 $ 130,262
February 1, 2015 -0- 42,482 42,482
August 1,2015 90,000 42,482 132,482
February 1,2016 -0- 40,533 40,533
August 1,2016 94,000 40,533 134,533
February 1,2017 -0- 38,427 38,427
August 1,2017 98,000 38,427 136,427
February 1,2018 -0- 36,193 36,193
August 1,2018 102,000 36,193 138,193
February 1,2019 -0- 33,837 33,837
August 1,2019 107,000 33,837 140,837
Februaiy 1, 2020 -0- 31,231 31,231
August 1,2020 111,000 31,231 142,231
February 1,2021 -0- 28,478 28,478
August 1,2021 116,000 28,478 144,478
February 1,2022 -0- 25,550 25,550
August 1,2022 121,000 25,550 146,550
February 1,2023 -0- 22,446 22,446
August 1,2023 126,000 22,446 148,446
February 1,2024 -0- 19,176 19,176
August 1,2024 132,000 19,176 151,176
February 1,2025 -0- 15,711 15,711
August 1,2025 137,000 15,711 152,711
February 1,2026 -0- 12,081 12,081
August 1,2026 143,000 12,081 155,081
February 1,2027 -0- 8,262 8,262
August 1,2027 150,000 8,262 158,262
February 1,2028 -0- 4,227 4,227
August 1,2028 156.000 4.227 160.227

$ 1.769-000 $ 761-530 $ 2-530-530

The accompanying independent auditor's reportis an integral part of thesenotes.
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Future debt maturities based on current financing arrangements is as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30. Principal Interest Total

2015 $ 86,000 $ 86,744 $ 172,744
2016 90,000 83,015 173,015
2017 94,000 78,960 172,960
2018 98,000 74,620 172,620
2019 102,000 70,030 172,030

2020-2024 581,000 268,423 849,423
2025-2029 718.000 99.738 817.738

$ 1.769,000 $ 761,530 $ 2.530.530

Obligation Under Capital Leases
The government has entered into lease agreements as leasee for financing the acquisition of

machinery and equipment for various departments. These lease agreements qualify as capital
leases for accounting purposes, and therefore have been recorded at the present value ofthe
future minimum lease payments as ofthe inception date. The following is a schedule offuture
minimum lease payments required under the capital leases and the present value of the net
minimum lease payments at Jxme 30,2014:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30.

2015 $ 424,034
2016 184,632
2017 56.881

Total minimum lease payments 665,547
Less: Amount representing interest 11.438
Present value ofminimum lease payments 654,109
Less: Current maturities 415.519

Non-current maturities $ 238.590

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Long-teim liability activityfor Business-Type Activities for the yearendedJune 30,2014 was as
follows:

Amounts Amounts

Beginning Ending Due Within Due After

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year One Year

Business-Type Activities
2003A Parking Revenue Bonds $ 315.000 $ ^ $ 50.000 $ 265.000 $ 50.000 $ 215.000

Other Long-Term Debt
Obligation under capital lease 367,016 -0- 91,195 275,821 90,346 185,475
Accrued compensated absences 8.012 409 -0- 8.421 -0- 8.421

Total other long-term debt 375.028 409 91.195 284.242 90.346 193.896

Total long-term debt S 690,028 $ m $ 141.195 $ 549.242 $ 140.346 $ 408.896

2003A Parking Revenue Bonds
The provisions of the Parking Fundrevenue bond covenant requirethat assetsbe accumulated in a
reserveaccount for the payment of future debt service. The covenant requires, at a minimum, that
an amount equivalent to one third of the current year's debt service payment be maintained in a
revenue account. A reserve account must also be funded with one tenth ofone twelve of the

highestdebt servicepayments in anygivenyear. The balancein the sinkingfund account at
June 30,2014 was $77,178.

The following is a schedule of future debt retirement based on current financing arrangements:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. Princinal Interest Total

2015 $ 50,000 $ 13,250 $ 63,250
2016 55,000 10,750 65,750
2017 60,000 8,000 68,000
2018 100.000 5.000 105.000

Total $ 265.000 $ 37.000 $ 302.000

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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The debt service coverage factor for the Parking Fund has been calculated as follows for the year
ended June 30,2014:

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income
Add: Depreciation expense
Add: Capital contributions (expenses included above)

$ 242,615
330.928

( 88,313)
28,088
71.000

Amoimt available for debt service $ 10.775

Maximum annual debt service $ 68.000

Calculated debt service coverage factor .16

Required debt service coverage factor 1.15

Based on this calculation, it appears that the ParkingFund was not in compliance with the
provisions set forth in its bond ordinance as of Jxme 30,2014.

Obligation Under Capital Leases
The City has enteredinto lease agreements to financethe repairs and maintenance ofvarious

structures and to purchase software. These leaseagreements qualifyas capital leasesfor
accountingpurposes, and thereforehave been recorded at the present value ofthe future
minimum lease payments as ofthe inception date. The followingis a schedule offuture
minimumleasepaymentsrequiredunder the capital leases and the present value ofthe net
minimum lease payments at June 30,2014:

Fiscal Year Ending Jime 30.

2015 $ 99,620
2016 99,620
2017 99.622

Total minimiun lease payments 298,862
Less: Amount representing interest 23.041
Present value ofminimum lease payments 275,821
Less: Current maturities 90.346

Non-current maturities $ 185.475

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof thesenotes.
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The following is a summary of long-term liability activity for the Utility Board for the year ended
June 30,2014:

Business Type Activities
Amounts Amounts

Beeinnina Ending Due Within Due After

Balance Additions Retirements Balance One Year One Year

Bonds payable
2003A Combined Revenue

Bonds $ 2,490,813 $ -0- $ 194,138 $ 2,296,675 $ 200,027 $ 2,096,648
2003B Combined Revenue

Bonds 2,130,209 -0- 149,943 1,980,266 157,440 1,822,826
2003D Combined Revenue

Bonds 587,650 -0- 44,608 543,042 45,962 497,080
2003E Combined Revenue

Bonds 2,696,019 -0- 210,665 2,485,354 214,910 2,270,444
2005A Combined Revenue

Bonds 25,645,000 -0- 1,525,000 24,120,000 1,585,000 22,535,000
2006C Combined Revenue

Bonds 11,365,000 -0- 1,205,000 10,160,000 1,265,000 8,895,000
2006D Combined Revenue

Bonds 7,425,000 -0- 300,000 7,125,000 300,000 6,825,000
2006E Combined Revenue

Bonds 3,483,001 -0- 145,756 3,337,245 145,756 3,191,489
2011A Combined Revenue

Bonds 5,681,418 -0- 240,741 5,440,677 245,591 5,195,086
2012A Combined Revenue

Bonds 4.992.995 738.705 214.938 5.516.762 286.585 5.230.177

Total bonds payable 66.497.105 738.705 4.230.789 63.005.021 4.446.271 58.558.750

Other long-term obligations
Accrued compensated

absences 221,342 206,037 187,411 239,968 210,162 29,806
Accrued post employment

benefit liability 2,453,620 74,353 -0- 2,527,973 -0- 2,527,973
Customer advances for

construction 587.180 57.257 156.956 487.481 -0- 487.481

Total other long-term
obligations 3.262.142 337.647 344.367 3.255.422 210.162 3.045.260

Total long-term debt and
obligations $ 69.759.247 $ 1.076.352 $ 4.575.156 $ 66.260.443 $ 4.656.433 $ 61.604.010

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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2003A Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
This bond issue had an original issue amount of$4,000,000 and is payable in quarterly

installments of$66,673 including interest of3.0%. The issue matures June 2024 and is secured
by a first lien on the gross revenues of the Waterworksand Seweragesystems on parity with the
other Series 2003 bonds.

Future debt maturity retirement based on current financing arrangements is as follows:

For the Year Ended Jime 30. Total Principal Interest

2015 $ 266,691 $ 200,027 $ 66,664
2016 266,691 206,096 60,595
2017 266,691 212,349 54,342
2018 266,691 218,791 47,900
2019 266,691 225,429 41,262

2020 - 2024 1.333.459 1.233.983 99.476

$ 2,666,914 $ 2.296.675 $ 370.239

2003B Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
This bond issue had an original issue amountof$3,250,000 and is payablein annualvarying

installment amounts including interest of5.0%. The issue matures October 2023 and is secured
by a first lien on the gross revenuesof the Waterworks and Sewerage systems on paritywith the
other Series 2003 bonds.

Future debt maturityretirementbased on current financing arrangements is as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30. Total Principal Interest

2015 $ 252,517 $ 157,440 $ 95,077
2016 252,321 165,312 87,009
2017 252,114 173,578 78,536
2018 251,897 182,257 69,640
2019 251,670 191,370 60,300

2023-2024 1.254.509 1.110.309 144.200

$ 2.515,028 $ 1.980.266 $ 534.762

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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2003D Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
This bond issue had an original issue amount of$926,000and is payablein quarterly installments

of$15,435 includinginterestof3.0%. The issuematures September 2024 and is secured by a
first lien on the gross revenuesof the Waterworks and Sewerage systems on paritywith the
other Series 2003 bonds.

Future debt maturity retirementbased on current financingarrangements is as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30. Total Principal Interest

2015 $ 61,739 $ 45,962 $ 15,777
2016 61,739 47,356 14,383
2017 61,739 48,793 12,946
2018 61,739 50,273 11,466
2019 61,739 51,798 9,941

2020-2024 308,695 283,540 25,155
2025 15.436 15.320 116

$ 632,826 $ 543.042 $ 89.784

2003E Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
Thisbondissuehad an original issueamount of $4,326,705 and is payable in quarterly

installments of$65,753 including interest of2.0%. Also, a 1% administrationfee of$5,835 is
due quarterly. The issuematures December 2024 and is secured by a first lien on the gross
revenuesofthe Waterworks and Sewerage systems on paritywith the other Series2003 bonds.

Future debt maturity retirementbased on current financing arrangements is as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30. Total Principal Interest

2015 $ 263,012 $ 214,910 $ 48,102
2016 263,012 219,241 43,771
2017 263,013 223,659 39,354
2018 263,012 228,165 34,847
2019 263,012 232,763 30,249

2020-2024 1,315,062 1,236,090 78,972
2025 131.506 130.526 980

$ 2,761,629 $ 2.485.354 $ 276.275

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof thesenotes.
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2005A Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
This bond issue had an original issue amount of$34,950,000 and is payable in varying

installment dates and amounts including coupon interest rates from 3.0% to 5.0%. The issue
matures August 2025 and is secured by a lien on the gross revenues of the Waterworks and
Sewerage systems secondary to previously issued bonds.

The outstanding bonds of this issue and its maturity dates and coupon rates are as follows:

Maturity Date Amount Interest Rate

August 1,2014 $ 1,585,000 4.00%
August 1,2015 1,650,000 4.00%
August 1,2016 1,715,000 4.00%
August 1,2017 1,785,000 4.00%
August 1,2018 1,855,000 4.00%
August 1,2019 1,930,000 5.00%
August 1,2020 2,025,000 4.50%
August 1,2021 2,120,000 4.50%
August 1,2022 2,215,000 4.50%
August 1,2023 2,315,000 4.25%
August 1,2024 2,410,000 4.25%
August 1,2025 2.515.000 4.25%

$ 24.120.000

Future debt maturity retirement based on current financing arrangements is as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30. Total Princioal Interest

2015 $ 2,587,300 $ 1,585,000 $ 1,002,300
2016 2,587,600 1,650,000 937,600
2017 2,585,300 1,715,000 870,300
2018 2,585,300 1,785,000 800,300
2019 2,582,500 1,855,000 727,500

2020-2024 12,866,606 10,605,000 2,261,606
2025-2026 5.136.544 4.925.000 211.544

$ 30.931.150 $ 24.120.000 $ 6.811.150

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partofthesenotes.
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2006C Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
This bond issue had an original issue amount of $17,425,000 and is payable in varying

installment dates and amounts including coupon interest rates from 3.7% to 5.0%. The issue
matures September 2020 and is secured by a lien on the gross revenues ofthe Waterworks and
Sewerage systems secondary to previously issued bonds.

The outstanding bonds of this issue and its maturity dates and coupon rates are as follows:

Maturity Date Amount Interest Rate

September 1,2014 $ 1,265,000 5.00%

September 1,2015 1,330,000 5.00%

September 1,2016 1,395,000 4.00%

September 1,2017 1,455,000 4.00%

September 1,2018 1,510,000 4.00%

September 1, 2019 1,570,000 4.10%

September 1,2020 1.635.000 4.10%

$ 10.160.000

Future debt maturity retirement based on current financing arrangements is as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30. Total Principal Interest

2015 $ 1,668,930 $ 1,265,000 $ 403,930
2016 1,669,055 1,330,000 339,055
2017 1,672,905 1,395,000 277,905
2018 1,675,905 1,455,000 220,905
2019 1,671,605 1,510,000 161,605

2020-2021 3.337.738 3.205.000 132.738

$ 11.696.138 $ 10.160.000 $ 1.536.138

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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2006D Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
This bond issue had an original issue amount of$9,000,000 and is payable in quarterly

installments of$75,000 with an interest rate of0.0%, however, a 0.5% administration fee of
$5,672 is due quarterly. The issue matures March 2038 and is secured by a lien on the gross
revenues of the Waterworks and Sewerage systems secondary to previously issued bonds.

Future debt maturity retirement based on current financing arrangements is as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30. Total Princioal Interest

2015 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ -0-
2016 300,000 300,000 -0-
2017 300,000 300,000 -0-
2018 300,000 300,000 -0-
2019 300,000 300,000 -0-

2020-2024 1,500,000 1,500,000 -0-
2025-2029 1,500,000 1,500,000 -0-
2030 - 2034 1,500,000 1,500,000 -0-
2035-2038 1.125.000 1.125.000 iQ:

$ 7.125.000 $ 7.125.000 $

2006E Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
This bond issue had an original issue amount of$4,372,600with the Utility Boarddrawing

$4,175,342 ofthese fiinds. The issue is payable in quarterly installmentsof$36,439with an
interest rate of0.0%, however, a 0.5% administrationfee of$2,756 is due quarterly. The issue
matures June 2037 and is secured by a lien on the gross revenues ofthe Waterworks and
Sewerage systems secondary to previously issued bonds.

Future debt maturity retirement based on current financing arrangements is as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30. Total Principal Interest

2015 $ 145,756 $ 145,756 $ -0-
2016 145,756 145,756 -0-
2017 145,756 145,756 -0-
2018 145,756 145,756 -0-
2019 145,756 145,756 -0-

2020-2024 728,761 728,761 -0-
2025-2029 728,760 728,760 -0-
2030 - 2034 728,760 728,760 -0-
2035-2037 422.184 422.184

$ 3.337.245 $ 3.337.245 $

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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2011A Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
This bond issue had an original issue amount of$5,800,000. This issue is payable in quarterly

installments of$88,143 including interest of2.0%. Also, a 1% administration fee of$7,821
will be due quarterly. The issue matures December 2032 and is secured by a lien on the gross
revenues of the Waterworks and Sewerage systems secondary to previously issued bonds.

Future debt maturity retirement based on current financing arrangements is as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30. Total Principal Interest

2015 $ 352,570 $ 245,591 $ 106,979
2016 352,571 250,541 102,030
2017 352,571 255,589 96,982
2018 352,572 260,740 91,832
2019 352,572 265,994 86,578

2020 - 2024 1,762,857 1,412,560 350,296
2025-2029 1,762,856 1,560,730 202,126
2030 - 2033 1.233.998 1.188.932 45.067

$ 6.522.567 $ 5.440.677 $ 1.081.890

2012A Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
This bond issue had an original issue amoimt of$5,731,700. This issue is payablein quarterly

installments of$71,646 including interest of0.0%, however, a 0.5% administration fee of
$3,627is due quarterly. The issue matures September2033 and is securedby a lien on the
gross revenues of the Waterworks and Sewerage systems secondary to previously issued bonds.

Future debt maturity retirement based on current financing arrangements is as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30. Total Principal Interest

2015 $ 286,585 $ 286,585 $ -0-
2016 286,585 286,585 -0-
2017 286,585 286,585 -0-

2018 286,585 286,585 -0-

2019 286,585 286,585 -0-

2020-2024 1,432,925 1,432,925 -0-

2025-2029 1,432,925 1,432,925 -0-

2030 - 2034 1.217.987 1.217.987 =0i

$ 5.516.762 $ 5.516.762 $

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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Total future debt maturity for the Utility Board based on current financingarrangements is as
follows:

For the Year Ended June 30. Total Principal Interest

2015 $ 6,185,100 $ 4,446,271 $ 1,738,829
2016 6,185,330 4,600,887 1,584,443
2017 6,186,674 4,756,309 1,430,365
2018 6,189,457 4,912,567 1,276,890
2019 6,182,130 5,064,695 1,117,435

2020-2024 25,840,612 22,748,168 3,092,443
2025-2029 10,708,027 10,293,261 414,766
2030 - 2034 4,680,745 4,635,679 45,067
2035-2038 1.547.184 1.547.184 -0-

$ 73,705,259 $ 63.005.021 $ 10.700.238

Debt Service Coverage Factor

The Debt Service Coverage Factor has been calculated as follows:

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income

Less: Administrative bond fees

Add: Depreciation expense
Interest income

Amount available for debt service and capital expenditures

Maximum annual debt service

Calculated debt service coverage factor

Required debt service coverage factor

$ 16,261,691
(11.626.065)

4,635,626

( 100,425)
3,873,348

43.341

$ 8.451.890

$ 6.189.457

1.37

1.20

Themanagement of theUtility Board believes it was in compliance with theprovisions set forth in
the Bond Ordinance.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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7. Employees Retirement System

West Virginia Public Employment Retirement System
The municipalitymaintains two separate employeecontributingpension plans. These plans cover
firemenand police officers. Substantially all other full-time civilianemployees are coveredby
the West VirginiaPublic Employees Retirement System. The West VirginiaEmployees'
Retirement Systemis funded through employercontributionsof 14.50%ofpayroll and member
contributions of4.5% ofpayroll.

The Municipality's contributionsto the West Virginia Public Employees Retirement System for the
year ended June 30,2014 is as follows:

Total wages $ 10,458,194
Total covered wages $ 4,232,192
Employer share 14.50% $ 613,667
Employee share 4.50% $ 190,447

The following is a summaryofeligibilityfactors, contribution methods, and benefit provisions:

Public Emnlovees' Retirement Svstem (PERS)

Eligibility to participate All Municipal full-time employees, exceptthose
covered by other pension plans

Authority establishing contribution
obligations and benefit provisions State Statute

Plan member's contribution rate 4.50%

Municipality's contribution rate 14.50%

Period required to vest Five Years

Benefits and eligibility for A memberwhohas attained age 60 and has earned
distribution 5 yearsor moreofcontribution service or age 55

if the sum ofhis/her age plus years ofcredited
service is equal to or greater than 80. The final
average salary (three highest consecutive years in
the last 10) times the years ofservice times 2%
equals the annual retirement benefit.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof thesenotes.
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Deferred retirement portion

Provisions for:
Cost of living
Death benefits

Public Emplovees' Retirement Svstem (PERSi

No

Trend Information

Fiscal Year

2014

2013

2012

No

Yes

Public Emplovees Retirement Svstem (PERS)

Annual Pension

Cost

$ 613,667
$ 570,292
$ 599,291

Percentage

Contributed

100%

100%
100%

PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That information may be obtained by writing to the Public
Employees Retirement System, Building 5, Room 1000,1900 Kanawha Boulevard East,
Charleston, WV 25305.

Discretely Presented Component Unit
The Utility Board's contributions to the West Virginia Public Employees Retirement System for

the year ended June 30,2014 is as follows:

Total Wages
Employer share 14.50%
Employee share 4.50%

$ 3,336,598
$ 483,807
$ 150,147

Trend Information

Fiscal Year

2014

2013

2012

Public Emplovees Retirement Svstem (PERSl

Annual Pension

Cost

$ 483,807
$ 463,923
$ 466,770

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Retiree Health Plan (RHP)

Plan Description:
The City ofParkersburg, West Virginia contributes to the West Virginia Retiree Health Benefits
Trust Fund (RHBT), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment
health care plan administered by the West Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency
(PEIA). RHBT provides medical benefits to eligible retired employees ofparticipating
employers. Eligibility is primarily established through participation in certain defined benefit
plans. RHBT issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to: West
Virginia Retiree Health Benefits Trust, Building 5, Room 1001,1900 Kanawha Boulevard
East, Charleston, West Virginia 25305-0710.

AuthorityEstablishing the Plan andFundPolicy:
Chapter 5, Article 16D ofthe West Virginia State Code assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefits and provisions to the RHBT. Participating employers are contractually
required to contribute at a rate assessed each year by RHBT. The RHBT board sets the
employer contribution rate based on the annual required contributions of the plan (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters ofGovernmentalAccoxmting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty
years.

Annual required contribution $ 951,451
Adjustment to annual required contribution -0-

Annual OPEB cost 951,451
Contributions made 582.708

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 368,743
Net OPEB obligation (asset) beginning ofyear 7.744.653

Net OPEB obligation (asset) end ofyear $ 8.113.396

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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Three-Year Trend Information

The City contributed the follow amounts:

Annual OPEB Percentage of Net OPEB

Year Ending Cost (ARC) ARC Contributed Obligation (Asset)

June 30,2014 $ 951,451 62% $ 8,113,396
June 30,2013 966,556 81% 7,744,653
June 30,2012 2,354,296 11% 7,559,229

Discretely Presented Component Unit
The following table shows the components ofthe Parkersburg Utility Board's annual OPEB cost
for the year, the amount actually contributed to the Plans, and changes in the Parkersburg Utility
Board's net OPEB obligations, as well as the assumptions used to calculate the net OPEB
obligation for the covered active and retired employees.

Three-Year Trend Information

The Utility Board contributed the following amounts:

Annual

Fiscal Year Ending OPEB Contributions Percentage Net OPEB

June 30. Cost Paid Contributed Obligation

June 30,2014 $ 229,762 $ 155,408 68% $ 2,527,973
June 30,2013 226,818 161,089 71% 2,453,620
June 30,2012 827,875 149,799 18% 2,387,891

The.accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart of these notes.

71



CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

8. Employee Retirement System and Plans

Plan Description, Contribution Information, and Funding Policies

The City ofParkersburg, West Virginiaparticipates in two single employer, public employee
retirementsystems. Assets are held separatelyand may be used only for the paymentofbenefits
to the members of the respective plans, as follows:

The Policemen'sPension and Relief Fund (PPRF) provides retirementbenefits for
substantially all full-time police employees. Unless otherwise indicated, PPRF information
in this Note is provided as ofthe latest actuarialvaluation,July 1, 2012.

The Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (FPRF) provides retirement benefits for substantially
all full-time fire employees. Unless otherwise indicated, FPRF information in this Note is
provided as of the latest actuarial valuation, July 1,2012,

Actuarial valuations are required to be performed once every three years per state statute.
However, the actuarial valuations can be performed in shorter intervals at the discretion of
the PPRF, and FPRF's board.

Memberships of the plans are as follows:

Groun PPRF FPRF Totals

Active Employees 62 56 118

Retirees and Beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 71 100 171

Total 133 m m

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart of these notes.
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These plans are defined benefit plans. The following is a summary of funding policies,
contribution methods and benefit provisions:

Determination of contribution

requirements

Employer

Plan Members

Period Required to Vest

Post-Retirement Benefit Increases

Eligibility for Distribution

Provisions for:

Disability Benefits
Death Benefits

PPRF FPRF

Actuarially determined Actuarially determined

Contributes annually an amount which, together with contributionsfi-om
the membersand the allocableportion of the state premiumtax fund, will
be sufficient to meet the normal cost of the fund and amortize any
actuarial deficiency over a period ofnot more than forty years. However,
municipalities may utilize an alternative contribution method, which
allows the municipality to contribute no less than 107% ofthe prior year
contribution provided the actuary certifies in writing that the fimd will be
solvent over the next 15 years imder this method. In no event can the
employer contribution be less than the normal costs as determined by the
actuary.

7% ofcovered payroll 7% ofcovered payroll

No vesting occurs. If separation fi-om employment occurs, the member is
entitled to a refund ofhis/her contributions only.

There is a cost of living adjustment after two years ofretirement. The
adjustment is calculated on the first $15,000 of the total annual benefit in
the first year and then the cumulative index for the preceding year. The
supplemental pension benefit shall not exceed four percent.

20 years of credited service or age 65; whichever comes first. Must be at
least age 50.

PPRF

Yes

Yes

FPRF

Yes

Yes

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart of these notes.
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Annual Required Contributions and Significant Actuarial Assumptions

The following actuarial methods and assumptions were applicable:

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Amortization Period
Actuarial Asset Valuation Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate ofReturn
Projected Salary Increases
Post Retirement Benefit Increases

Inflation
Cost ofLiving Adjustments

Policemen's
Pension & Relief

Fund

7/1/2013
Projected Unit Credit
Level % closed
29 Years (Level Percentage)
Market Value

7.00%
5% per year
3.00% on first $15,000 of

the Annual Benefit and the
accumulated supplemental
pension amounts for
prior years.

3.00%
3.00%

Firemen's
Pension & Relief
Fund

7/1/2013
Projected Unit Credit
Level % closed
29 Years (Level Percentage)
Market V^ue

7.00%
5% per year
3.00% on first $15,000 of

the Annual Benefit and the
accumulated supplemental
pension amounts for
prior years.

3.00%
3.00%

Annual Pension Cost, Net Pension Obligation and Reserves

Current year annual pension costs for the PPRF and FPRF are shown in the trend information.
The annual required contributions were made by both the PPRF or FPRF.

Reserves

There are no assets legally reserved for purposes other than the payment ofplan members benefits
for either plan.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation (NPO)

The Municipality's annual pension cost and net pension obligation for the Policemen's and
Firemen's Pension and Relief funds are as follows:

PPRF FPRF

Annual required contribution $ 2,401,433 $ 2,530,885
Interest on short-term 577,078 545,740
Adjustment to annual required contribution ( 482,750) ( 439.957)

Annual pension cost 2,495,761 2,636,668
Contributions made 1.656.861 2.695.170

Change in net pension obligation 838,900 ( 58,502)
Net pension obligation at the beginning of the year 11.541.552 9.922.553

Net pension obligation at the end ofthe year $ 12.380.452 $ 9.864.051

Trend Informadon

Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund (PPRF)

Annual Pension Percentage Net Pension
Fiscal Year Cost Contributed Obligation

2014 $ 2,495,761 66% $ 12,380,452
2013 $ 2,464,037 61% $ 11,541,552
2012 $ 2,324,769 59% $ 10,584,933

Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (FPRF)

Annual Pension Percentage Net Pension
Fiscal Year Cost Contributed Obligation

2014 $ 2,636,668 102% $ 9,864,051
2013 $ 2,706,400 95% $ 9,922,553
2012 $ 2,550,499 97% $ 9,797,837

GASB 67 disclosure information was not available for the Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Discretely Presented Component Unit

Plan Description, Contribution Information, and Fund Policies
The Parkersburg UtilityBoard elected to become a participating publicemployer underthe West
Virginia PublicEmployees Retirement System (PERS), a cost-sharing multi-employer defined
benefit pension plan administeredby the West Virginia ConsolidatedPublic RetirementBoard.
The Board'scontribution to the West VirginiaPublic Employees Retir^ent System for the year
ended June 30,2014 was:

Total Wages
Employer share 14.00%
Employee share 4.50%

$ 3,313,738
$ 463,923
$ 149,118

Thefollowing is a summary of eligibility factors, contribution methods, andbenefit provisions:

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERSl

Eligibility to participate

Authority establishing contribution
obligations and benefit provisions

Plan member's contribution rate
Board's contribution rate

Period required to vest

Benefits and eligibility for
distribution

Deferred retirement portion

Provisions for:

Cost of living
Death benefits

All full-time employees, except those covered by
other pension plans

State Statute

4.50%

14.50%

Five Years

A member who has attained age 60 and has earned
5 years or more ofcontribution service or age 55
ifthe sum ofhis/her age plus years ofcredited
service is equal to or greater than 80. The final
average salary (three highest consecutive years in
the last 10) times the years of service times 2%
equals the armual retirement benefit.

No

No

Yes

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

PERSissuesa publiclyavailable financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That information maybe obtained by writing to the Public
Employees Retirement System, Building 5, Room 1000,1900 Kanawha Boulevard East,
Charleston, WV 25305.

9. Interfund Balances

Individual fund interfimd receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2014 for fimd financial:

Due From Due to

Other Funds Other Funds

General Fund $ 17,926 $ -0-

Special Revenue Funds
Community Development Fund -0- 17.926

$ 17.926 $ 17.926

10. Contingent Liabilities

Amounts receivedor receivable fi*om grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Anydisallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable fimds.

The amount, ifany,ofexpenditures which may be disallowed by the grantorcannotbe determined
at this time although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The government is a defendantin various lawsuits. Althoughthe outcomeofthese lawsuits is not
presently determinable, it is the opinion of the government's counsel that resolution of these
matterswill not have a material effect on the financial conditionof the government.

The government is exposedto various risks of loss relatedto torts, theftof, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for whichthe government carries
insurance with Accordia ofWest Virginia for (umbrella) insurance for these various risks.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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aXY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

The government is self-insured for losses and liabilities related to workers' compensation. In
exchange for the payment ofpremiums, the government has transferred its risk related to health
coverage for employees.

Discretely Presented Component Unit
The Utility Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and

destruction ofassets; errors and omissions; injuries to and illnesses ofemployees; and natural
disasters.

The Utility Board has obtained commercial insurance coverage for general liability, property
damage, errors and omissions, and natural disasters. Such coverage is offered in exchange for a
premium to a third-party insurance company. Any general liability or auto liability loss in excess
of$3,000,000, and public officials loss in excess of$2,000,000, will be the responsibility of the
Utility Board. Real and personal property inventory is covered for replacement cost subject to a
signed Statement ofValues. Scheduled automotive and maintenance equipment is covered for
actual cash value.

In addition, through its participation in the West Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency
(PEIA) and a third-party insurer, the Entity has obtained health, life, and prescription drug
coverage for its employees. In exchange for payment ofpremiums to PEIA and the third-party
insurer, the Utility Board has transferred its risks related to health, life, and prescription drug
coverage.

The Utility Board is self-insured for losses and liabilities related to workers' compensation.

The Utility Board has entered into various agreements for construction, as well as engineering and
architectural services in connection with the maintenance, operation and expansion of its
combined waterworks and sewerage systems. Commitments for future payments by the Utility
Board under these construction and professional services contracts totaled approximately
$2,065,716 as of June 30,2014.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

The Utility Board's sewerage system is subject to federal and state requirements governing the
collection, treatment, and discharge ofpollutants, including the requirements ofthe United States
Environmental Protection Agency and the West Virginia Division ofEnvironmental Protection.
The Utility Board currently holds all licenses and permits required for operation ofthe sewerage
system. Pursuant to the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Water Pollution
Control Permits granted to the Utility Board to operate the sewerage system, the Utility Board is
subject to certain compliance measures required to eliminate sewerage system overflows by
October 31,2020. More stringent or additional environmental requirements may substantially
increase the cost ofsewerage services by requiring changes in the design or operation ofexisting
facilities as well as changes in location, design, construction, and operation ofany new facilities.
There is no assurance that the sewerage system facilities in operation or contemplated will always
remain in compliance with regulations currently in effect or will always be in compliance with
future regulations. Failure to comply with such requirements could result in the imposition of
civil and criminal penalties.

11. Lease

The City entered into a long-term lease agreement for an antenna tower owned by the City on
November 14,2007. The leasee prepaid $529,000 for the 50 year lease that will expire in
November of2057. The lease is considered an operating lease and the amount received is
considered deferred, and included in deferred revenue imtil the period in which it is earned. The
amount to be recognized as earned is as follows:

Year Ended June 30. Amount

2015 $ 10,580
2016 10,580
2017 10,580
2018 10,580
2019 10,580

Thereafter 406.007

Total $ 458.907

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

12. Restricted

Certain enterprise fundassetsare restricted for repayment of long-term debt. Restricted net
position include the excess of assets over certain liabilities restricted for the debt service on
revenue bonds.

13. Jointly Governed Organizations

TheCityof Parkersburg, theWood County Commission, and the Wood County Board of Education
havejoined in the establishment ofa system ofpublicrecreation andhavedelegated the
administration of the same to the Wood County Recreation Commission.

14. Deficit Net Position/Fund Balances

It was determined duringthis examination that the Governmental Activities had deficitnet positions
at June 30,2014. The elimination ofthese deficit net positions is contingenton increasedfunding
for these funds.

15. Restatement of Fund Balance/Net Position

It was determined during our audit that the flmdbalance ofthe CommunityDevelopmentFimd
required restatement as follows:

Fund balance as previously stated $ (28,264)

Overstatement of accounts receivable (67.298)

Fund balance as restated $ (95.562)

It was determined during our audit that the fimd balance of the Neighborhood Stabilization Fund
required restatement as follows:

Fund balance as previously stated $ 46,923

Overstatement of accoimts receivable 47.800

Fund balance as restated $ 94.723

The accompanying independent auditor'sreport is an integral part ofthese notes
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

It was determined during our audit that the fund balance of the Home Fundrequired restatement as
follows:

Fund balance as previouslystated $( 11,373)

Overstatement ofaccoimts receivable ( 95.370)

Fund balance as restated $ (106.743^

It was determined dviring our audit that the net positionofthe governmental activities required
restatement as follows:

Net position as previouslystated $ (5,505,905)

Overstatement ofaccountsreceivable ( 114,868)
Write offofbond issue costs in compliancewith GASB 65 ( 7.052'!

Net position as restated $ (5.627.825^1

16 Related Party Transactions

The Utility Board includes garbage fees on the invoices for water and sewer services on behalfof
the Cityof Parkersburg (theCity). TheUtility Board receives the payments andremits the funds
received to the Cityon a monthly basis. TheUtility Board hada balance dueto the Cityof
$16,025 as ofJune 30,2014.

Fromtimeto time, the UtilityBoard constructs waterand sewerlinesonbehalfof the City. The
Utility Board is reimbursed for theircostsby the Cityand then the Citydonates the constructed
lines, as a capital contribution, backto the Utility Board formaintaining. TheUtility Board had no
receivable from the City as ofJune 30,2014.

17. Subsequent Events

The City has considered all subsequent events throughMarch 2,2015, the date the financial
statements were made available.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
HREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS MULTIYEAR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Fiscal year ending June 30,

Total Pension Liability
Service cost

Interest on the total pension liability
Benefit changes
Differencebetween expected and actual experience
Assumption changes
Benefit payments
Refimds

Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability - beginning

Total pension liability - ending (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Pension plan net investment income
Benefit payments
Refimds

Pension plan administrative expense
Other

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position- beginning

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b)

Plan fiduciarynet position as a percentageof total
pension liability

Covered employee payroll

Net pension liability as a percentage ofcovered
employee payroll

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report andnotes areintegral parts of thisschedule.
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2014

$ 933,850
2,757,543

-0-

-0-

-0-

( 2,604,636)
lO;

1,086,757

50.505.605

51.592.362

2,695,170
195,783
235,365

( 2,604,636)
-0-

( 47)
-Oz

521,635

10.389.150

10.910.785

$ 40.681.577

21.15%

$ 2.562.709

1,587.44%



CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

SCHEDULE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY MULTTYEAR -

LAST 10 nSCAL YEARS (WHICH MAY BE BUILT PROSPECTTVELY)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Total Plan Net Position Net Pension Liability

Pension Plan Net Net Pension as a % ofTotal Covered as a % of

FY Ending June 30. Liability Position Liability Pension Liability Payroll Covered Payroll

2014 $ 51,592,362 $ 10,910,785 $ 40,681,577 21.15% $ 2,562,709 1,587.44%

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts ofthis schedule.
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Fiscal Year Ended

06/30/2013

06/30/2014

CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS MULTIYEAR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Actuariallv

Determined Employer State Percentage

Contribution Contribution Contribution Contributed

£a) (bl £c} r(b)+(c)1/(a)

$ 2,613,499 $ 1,959,672 $ 622,008 99%
$ 2,530,885 $ 2,096,853 $ 598,317 106%

Covered

Payroll

m

$ 2,499,054
$ 2,562,709

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notesare integral partsof this schedule.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014

Theinformation requested in therequired supplementary schedules was determined as partof the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as ofthe latest actuarial valuation follows:

MeasurementDate June 30,2014, measurement date based on actuarial liabilities
as ofJuly 1,2013

Actuarial CostMethod Entry Age Normal, Level-Percentage-of-Pay

Actuarial Value ofAssets Market value used for GASB Nos. 67 and 68 reporting

Contribution Policy and
Amortization Method

ActuarialAssumptions:

Investment Rate ofReturn

GASB 67/68 Discount Rate

Projected Salary Increases

Cost ofLiving Increases

The sponsor finances benefits using the Alternative
fimding policy as defined in state statue. Sponsorcontributions
are equal to 107percent of the prior year contribution. The plan
also receives state contributions based on an allocation of

premium tax that depends on the number ofactive and retired
members. This fimding policy does not directly amortize the
unfimded actuarial liability. However, projectedsponsor, state
and member contributions along with projected investment
earningsare expected to fully fimdthe projected actuarial
liabilityfor current plan membersby 2032.

5.500% per year

5.500% per year at June 30,2014, and 5.500% at June 30,2013

9.0% with one year of service, 4.5% with two years ofservice,
2.0% with three to four years of service and 1.0% after

3.00% on first $15,000 ofAnnual Benefit and on the
accumulated supplemental pension amountsfor prior years

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
HREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Single Discount Rate

A GASB Nos. 67 and 68 single discount rate of5.500% was used to measure the total pension liability
as of Jxme 30,2014. Thissinglediscount rate wasbasedon the expected rateofreturnon pension plan
investmentsof 5.500%,and the municipal bond rate of4.290%. The projectionofcash flows used to
determine this singlediscount rate assumed that the Plan sponsorwouldmakethe statutory required
contribution as defined by the funding policy. Basedon these assumptions, the pensionplan's fiduciary
net position was projected to be availableto make projectedfuturebenefit payments, on behalf of
current plan members, for all future plan years. Therefore,the single discount rate of5.500% was
applied to all periodsofprojected benefitpayments to determine the total pensionliability.

Regarding the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changesin the single discountrate, the following
presents the plan's net pension liability, calculatedusing a single discount rate of5.500%, as well as
what the plan'snet pension liabilitywouldbe if it werecalculated using a singlediscount rate that is
1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher.

Sensitivity ofNet Pension Liability
to the Single Discount Rate Assumption

Current Single Discount

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
4.500% 5.500% 6.500%

$ 47,754,166 $ 40,681,577 $ 34,898,608

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral partsof this schedule.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA

COMBINING FUND BALANCE SHEETS -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014

ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Receivables (net ofallowances for uncollectibles)
Loans

Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Matured bond interest payable
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balances

Restricted

Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND

BALANCES

Special

Revenue

Funds

Nonmaior Debt

Permanent Service

Funds Fund Total

640,306 $ 41,898 $
-0- 211,527

-0- $

-0-

-0-

-0-

682,204
211,527

1,047,601

( 17.926)

1,047,601

( 17.926)

-0-

-0-

$ 1.669,981 $ 253.425 $ -0- $ 1.923.406

220,609
-0-

976.958

1.197.567

109,497
362,917

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

253,425
-0-

-0-

472.414 253.425

-0- $ 220,609
36,885 36,885

'Oz 976.958
36.885 1.234.452

-0-

-0-

(36.8851

(36.8851

362,922
362,917

36.8851

688.954

$ L669.981 $ 253.425 $ -0- $ 1.923.406

The accompanying independent auditor's report andnotes are integral parts ofthe combining financial
statements.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Special Nonmaior Debt

Revenue Permanent Service

Funds Funds Fund Total

Revenues

Taxes and special assessments
Ad valorem $ 22,396 $ -0- $ -0- $ 22,396

Fines and forfeits 31,620 -0- -0- 31,620
Investment income 6,909 25,833 1 32,743
Donations and contributions 2,620,287 -0- -0- 2,620,287
Charges for services 121,075 -0- -0- 121,075
Intergovernmental:

Federal 909,027 -0- -0- 909 027

Miscellaneous 222.005 -0- -0- 222.005

Total revenues 3.933.319 25.833 1 3.959.153

Expenditures
Public safety 146,394 -0- -0- 146,394
Highways and streets 142,026 -0- -0- 142,026
Culture and recreation 12,385 -0- -0- 12,385
Insurance and benefits paid 2,788,673 -0- -0- 2,788,673
Community development 677,997 -0- -0- 677,997
Economic development 22,396 -0- 1,088 23,484
Debt service:

Principal -0- -0- 83,000 83,000
Interest -0- -0- 88.800 88.800

Total expenditures 3.789.871 -0- 172.888 3.962.759

(Deficiency) excess ofrevenues (under) over
expenditures 143.448 25.833 ri72.8871 ( 3.6061

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in -0- -0- 173,203 173,203
Operating transfers (out) ( 173.2031 -0- -0- ( 173.2031

Total other financing sources (uses) ( 173.2031 -0- 173.203 -0-

Net change in fund balance ( 29,755) 25,833 316 ( 3,606)

Fund balance beginning ofyear 502.169 227.592 ( 37.2011 692.560

Fund balance end ofyear $ 472,414 $ 253.425 $ ( 36.8851 $ 688.954

Theaccompanying notes arean integral partof the combining financial statements.
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aiY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING FUND BALANCE SHEETS - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2014

Asset Tax
Forfeiture and Police Increment

Reimbursement Historical Communitv Emolovee Special Neighborhood Countv PinancinE Farmers Medical
Grant Preservation Develooment Benefits Proiects Stabilization Rehab District Market FSA Total

ASSETS

Cash $ 104,690 $ 60,876 $ 57,866 $ 377,565 $ 10,370 $ 22,452 $ -0- $ 42 $ 1,071 $ 5,374 $ 640,306
Receivables (net of allowances for

(uncollectibles)
Loans -0- 4,898 998,102 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 1,047,601

Due froni/(to) other funds -0- -0- ( 17.9261 -0- -0- 44,601 iQz :Qz -0- -0- ( 17.9261

TOTAL ASSETS S 104.690 $ 65.774 $ 1.038.042 $ 377.565 S 10.370 $ 67.053 $ $ M S 1,071 $ 5,374 $ 1.669.981

LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ -0- $ 14 $ 2,520 $ 217,488 $ -0- $ 20 $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 567 $ 220,609
Deferred revenue -0- 4.898 972.060 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 976.958

Total liabilities -0- 4,912 974.580 217.488 -0- 20 zQz :Qz -0- 567 1.197.567

Fund Balances

Restricted 104,690 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 4,807 109,497
Assigned -0- 60.862 63.462 160.077 10.370 67.033 -0- 42 1.071 -0- 362.917

Total hind balances 104.690 60,862 63.462 160.077 10,370 67,033 42 1.071 4.807 472.414

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES $ 104,690 $ 65.774 $ 1.038.042 $ 377.565 $ 10.370 $ 67.053 $ $ M S 1.071 $ 5,374 $ 1.669.981

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integral part ofthe combining financial statements.
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aXY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Revenues

Taxes and special assessments:

Assets

Forfeiture and

Reimbursement

Grant

Historical

Preservation

Community

Development

Employee

Benefits

Police

Special

Projects

Neighborhood

Stabilization

County

Rehab

Tax

Increment

Financing

District

Fanners

Market

Medical

FSA Total

Ad valorem

1

o
1

$ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 22,396 $ -0- $ -0- $ 22,396
Fines and forfeits 31,620 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 31,620
Investment income 41 101 6,767 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 6,909
Donations and contributions -0- 4,200 -0- 2,597,139 3,056 -0- -0- -0- -0- 15,892 2,620,287
Charges for services -0- 744 119,942 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 389 -0- 121,075
Intergovernmental:

Federal -0- -0- 905,268 -0- -0- 3,759 -0- -0- -0- -0- 909,027
Miscellaneous -0- -0- 924 -0- -0- 221.081 -0- -0- -0- -0- 222.005

Total revenues 3L661 5.045 1.032.901 2.597.139 3,056 224.840 =Qi 22.396 389 15.892 3.933.319

Expenditures
Public safety 8,256 -0- 133,181 -0- 4,957 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 146,394
Highways and streets -0- -0- 142,026 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 142,026
Culture and recreation -0- 12,385 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 12,385
Insurance and benefits paid -0- -0- -0- 2,771,955 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 16,718 2,788,673
Community development -0- -0- 425,467 -0- -0- 252,530 -0- -0- -0- -0- 677,997
Economic development -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 22.396 -0- -0- 22.396

Total expenditures 8.256 12.385 700.674 2.771.955 4,957 252.530 iQr 22.396 -0- 16.718 3.789.871

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues
over (imder) expenditures 23.405 i 7.340) 332.227 ( 174.816) ( 1.901) ( 27.690) rQr -0- 389 ( 826) 143.448
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTD)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Assets Tax
Forfeiture and Police Increment

Reimbursement Historical Community Employee Snecial Neiehborhood Coimtv Financine Farmers Medical
Grant Preservation Development Benefits Projects Stabilization Rehab District Market FSA Total

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers (out) $ -0- $ -0- $(173,203) $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $( 173.203)

Total other financings sources
uses -0- -0- (173.203) -0- -0- -0- zQi -0- -0- -0- ( 173.203)

Net change in fund balances 23,405 ( 7,340) 159,024 ( 174,816) ( 1,901) ( 27,690) -0- -0- 389 ( 826) ( 29,755)

Fund balance beginning ofyear -
restated 81.285 68,202 ( 95.562) 334.893 12,271 94.723 42 682 5.633 502.169

Fund balance end ofyear $ 104,690 $ 60,862 $ 63.462 $ 160.077 $ 10.370 $ 67.033 $ ^ $ 42 $ 1.071 $ 4.807 $ 472.414

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of thecombining financial statements.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING FUND BALANCE SHEETS -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2014

Riverfront

Park

ASSETS

Cash $ -0-

TOTAL ASSETS $ -0-

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities

Matured bond interestpayable $ 36,885
Total liabilities 36,885

Fund Balance

Unassigned (36,885)
Total fund balance (36,885)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE $ -0-

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of the combining financial
statements.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Riverfront

Park

Revenues

Investment income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Economic development
Debt service:

Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over
(imder) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fimd balance

Fund balance - beginning ofyear

Fund balance - end ofyear

1,088

83,000
88.800

172.888

(172.887)

173.203

173.203

316

( 37.201)

$ ( 36.885)

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of the combiningfinancial
statements.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING FUND BALANCE SHEETS -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
PERMANENT FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2014

ASSETS

Cash

Investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Fund Balances

Restricted

TOTAL UABIUTIES AND FUND

BALANCES

Julia and

Charles Caroline Ben RJA Solomon

Hurst Jackson Nathan Boreman Prager

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

$ 13,197 $ 16,976 $ 9,514 $ 57 $ 2,154 $ 41,898
zOr 152.743 zOz . 58.784 211.527

S 13.197 $ 169.719 $9^ $ 58.841 $ 2.154 $ 253.425

$ 13.197 $ 169.719 $9^ $ 58.841 $ 2.154 $ 253.425

$ 13.197 $ 169.719 $9^ $ 58.841 $ 2Ji4 ^ 253.425

The accompanying independent auditor'sreport and notes are an integral part of the combining financial
statements.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
PERMANENT FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Julia and

Charles Caroline Ben RJA Solomon

Hurst Jackson Nathan Boreman Praeer

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Revenues

Investment income $ 1 $ 25.795 $ -0- $ 36 $ 1 $ 25.833

Total revenues 1 25.795 -0- 36 1 25.833

Expenditures
Benefits paid -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

Total expenditures -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

Net change in fund balance 1 25,795 -0- 36 1 25,833

Fund balance beginning of year 13,196 143.924 9,514 58,805 2,153 227.592

Fimd balance end ofyear $ 13.197 $ 169.719 $ ILIM $ 58.841 $ 2,154 $ 253.425

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report and notes areintegral parts of thecombining financial
statements.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF HDUCIARY NET ASSETS -

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2014

Policemen's Firemen's

Pension and Pension and

ReliefFund Relief Fimd Total

Assets

Cash

Investments

Receivables:

Accrued interest

Total assets

$ 201,891 $ 749,103 $ 950,994
10,035,374 10,873,265 20,908,639

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Net Assets

Held in trust

12.761 37.521 50.282

10.250.026 11.659.889 21.909.915

:Qi
-0-

iQi
-0- -0-

$ 10.250.026 $ 11.659.889 $ 21.909.915

The accompanying independent auditor's reportand notes are integral parts ofthis statement.
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aXY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RDUOARY NET ASSETS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Policemen's Firemen's

Pension and Pension and

Trust Fund Trust Fund Total

Additions:

Contributions:

Employer
Employee
Insurance premium tax allocation

Total contributions

$ 950,886
231,541
560.890

1.743.317

$ 2,096,853
195,783

598.317

2.890.953

$ 3,047,739
427,324

1.159.207

4.634.270

Investment income:

Gain (loss) on investments
Interest and dividends

Total investment income

934,128
179.655

1.113.783

795,340
246.381

1.041.721

1,729,468
426.036

2.155.504

Miscellaneous

Total additions

402

2.857.502

500

3.933.174

902

6.790.676

Deductions:

General and administrative

Benefit payments
Total deductions

86,478
2.062.489

2.148.967

57,799
2.604.636

2.662.435

144,277
4.667.125

4.811.402

Net increase 708,535 1,270,739 1,979,274

Net assets - beginning ofyear - restated 9.541.491 10.389.150 19.930.641

Net assets - end ofyear $ 10,250,026 $ 11.659.889 $ 21.909.915

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report andnotes are integral partsof this statements.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF HDUCIARY NET ASSETS

AGENCY FUND

JUNE 30, 2014

Tree

Commission

Assets

Cash $ 8.689

Total assets $ 8.689

Liabilities

Refunds payable and others $ 8.689
Total liabilities $

The accompanying independent auditor's report andnotesare integral parts of this statement.
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Tetrick &Bartlett, PLLC
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Consultants

122 N. Oak St • PC Box 1916 • Clarksburg, WV 26302-1916 • (304) 624-5564 • Fax:(304) 624-5582 • www.tetrickbartlett.com
1517 Mary Lou Retton Drive • Fairmont, WV 26554 • (304) 366-2992 • Fax:(304) 366-2370

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and Council of
the City ofParkersburg

Parkersburg, West Virginia

We haveaudited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States ofAmerica and the standardsapplicable to financial audits containedin Government
AuditingStandards issued by the ComptrollerGeneral of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remainingfund information ofCity of
Parkersburg, West Virginia, as ofand for the year ended June 30,2014, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise Cityof Parkersburg, West Virginia's basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon date March2,2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Inplanning andperforming ourauditof the financial statements, we considered the Cityof
Parkersburg, West Virginia'sintemal controlover financial reporting(intemal control) to
determine the auditprocedures thatare appropriate in the circumstances for thepurpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purposeofexpressing an
opinionon the effectiveness of the Cityof Parkersburg, West Virginia's intemalcontrol.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinionon the effectiveness of CityofParkersburg, West
Virginia's intemal control.

A deficiency in intemal controlexistswhenthe design or operation of a cjontrol doesnot allow
managementor employees, in the normal course ofperformingtheir assignedfunctions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatementson a timelybasis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination ofdeficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable
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Honorable Mayor and Council of
the CityofParkersburg Page2

possibilitythat a materialmisstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and correctedon a timelybasis. A significantdeficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination ofdeficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a materialweakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those chargedwith govemance.

Our consideration ofinternal control was for the limitedpurposedescribed in the firstparagraph
of this section and wasnot designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control thatmightbe
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Giventhese limitations, duringour auditwe did
not identify any deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As partof obtaining reasonable assurance aboutwhether the Cityof Parkersburg, WestVirginia's
financial statements arefi*ee ofmaterial misstatement, weperformed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, andgrant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However,providing an opinion on compliancewith those provisions was not an
objective ofour audit, and accordingly, we do not express suchan opinion. Theresults ofour
testsdisclosed an instance of noncompliance or othermatters that is required to be reported
underGovernment Auditing Standardsandis described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as item 2014-001.

We noted certain matters that wereported to manag^ent of Cityof Parkersburg, WestVirginia
in a separate letter dated March 2,2015.

Purpose of this Report

The purposeofthis report is solelyto describe the scopeof our testingofintemal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's intemal control or on compliance. Thisreport is an integral partof an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intemal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for anyofiier purpose.

(JjoUJuJl ' . Pa/ (.

March 2,2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR

EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-IJJ

The Honorable Mayor and Council of
the City ofParkersburg

Parkersburg, West Virginia

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We haveaudited the Cityof Parkersburg, West Virginia's compliance withthe types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB CircularA-133 Compliance Supplement that
could havea directandmaterial effecton eachofCityof Parkersburg, WestVirginia's major
federal programs for theyear ended June30,2014. TheCityof Parkersburg, West Virginia's
major federal programsare identifiedin the summaryofauditor's results sectionofthe
accompanying schedule offindings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to expressan opinion on compliancefor each ofCity ofParkersburg, West
Virginia's majorfederal programs basedon our auditof the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance withauditing standards
generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issuedby the Comptroller General of the United
States;and OMBCircxAdi Audits ofStates, Local Governments, and Non-Prqfit
Organizations. Thosestandards and OMBCircularA-133 requirethat we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with thetypes of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a directandmaterial effect on a majorfederal
programoccurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence aboutCityof
Parkersburg, WestVirginia's compliance withthoserequirements andperforming suchother
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

101



Honorable Mayor and Coimcil of
the City ofParkersburg Page 2

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination ofCity of
Parkersburg, West Virginia's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion. City ofParkersburg, West Virginia, complied, in all material respects, with the
types ofcompliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2014.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management ofCity of Parkersburg, West Virginia, is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effectiveintemal controlover compliance with the types ofcompliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit ofcompliance, we consideredCity of
Parkersburg, West Virginia's intemal control over compliancewith the types ofrequirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
proceduresthat are appropriatein the circumstancesfor the purpose ofexpressingan opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on intemal control over
compliancein accordancewith OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose ofexpressingan
opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness ofCity ofParkersburg, West Virginia's intemal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation ofa control
over compliancedoes not allow managementor employees, in the normal course ofperforming
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement ofa federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in intemal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination ofdeficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination ofdeficiencies, in intemal control over compliance with a type ofcompliance
requirement ofa federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration ofintemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph ofthis section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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The purpose ofthis report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements ofOMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

^jjjuicJc * StxAJU.iM~. PAAc

March 2,2015
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

A. Summary ofAudit Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Deficiency(s) identified not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

FederalAwards

Intemal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Deficiency(s) identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type ofauditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with section .510(a) of Circular A-133?

Identification ofmajor programs:

United States DepartmentofHousing and Urban Development/Office of
Community Planning and Development

Home Investment Partnerships Program
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants

Dollar thresholdused to distinguishbetween Type A and Type B
programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee
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Unmodified Opinion

No

None reported

Yes

No

None reported

Unmodified Opinion

No

CFDA #14.239

CFDA #14.218

$300.000

yes X no



CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

B. Findings - Financial Statement Audit

2014-001 Compliance with Bond Debt Coverage

Criteria: City ofParkersburg, West Virginia'sParking Garage Fund is required to have adequate
revenues to maintain a 110% debt service coverage.

Condition: It was determinedduring our audit that the Parking Garage Fund failed to comply
with the 110% debt coverage ratio.

Cause: The ParkingGarageFund failed to maintain the 110%debt coverageratio by not charging
adequate rates and reviewing expenses.

Effect: The failure of the Parking Garage Fund to charge adequate rates has resulted in the
ParkingGarageFund failing to have adequaterevenue to maintain a 110%debt coverage ratio.

Recommendation: The Parking Garage Fund should review its parking rates and expenses to
permit the ParkingGarage Fimdto maintain a 110%bond debt coverage.

Entity's Response: The City ofParkersburg will review the rates currentlybeing charged by the
ParkingGarageFund as well as reviewingthe expensesofthe ParkingGarageFund.

C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Program Audit

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development —Office of
Community Planning and Development - Home Investment Program - CFDA
Number 14.239 - Year Ended June 30,2014; United States Department of Housing
and Urban Development —Office of Community Planning and Development —
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants - CFDA Number 14.218 -
Year Ended June 30,2014;

Therewereno findings and questioned costs identified in the major federal awardprogram audit.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Federal Grantor/Pass-throueh Grantor/
Federal Proaram or Receipts Federal
CFDA Award or Revenues Disbursements

Program Title Number Grant Number Amount Recoenized Expenditures

United States Department of Justice

Department ofJustice/Wood County Commission
ARRA- EdwardByrneMemorialJustice AssistanceGrant (JAG)

Program/Grants to Units ofLocal Governments 16.804 2013-DJ-BX-0439 $ 44,786 $ 29,499 $ 29,499
ARRA- EdwardByrneMemorialJusticeAssistanceGrant (JAG)

Program/Grants to Units of Local Governments 16.804 FS14-HS-04 55,000 54,786 54,786

Bureau ofJustice Assistance/Statement of West Virginia
Division ofCriminal Justice Services
EdwardByrneMemorial JusticeAssistance GrantProgram 16.738 13-JAG-13 20,000 20,000 20,000

West Virginia Department ofTransportation
ARRA- Edward Byrne MemorialJustice AssistanceGrant (JAG)

Program/Grants to States and Territories 16.803 SRTS-2011(055)D 11,000 3,191 3,191
ARRA- EdwardByrne Memorial Justice AssistanceGrant (JAG)

Program/Grants to States and Territories 16.803 SRTS-2011(055)D 100.000 37.090 37.090

Total United States Department of Justice S 230.786 S 144.566 $ 144.566

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development

OfficeofCommand Planning and Development
HomeInvestmentPartnerships Program 14.239 M-lO-DC-54-0203 $ 88,193 $ 88,193 $ 88,193
Home InvestmentPartnershipsProgram 14.239 M-ll-DC-54-0203 230,630 86,614 86,614
Home InvestmentPartnershipsProgram 14.239 M-12-DC-54-0203 260,121 86,577 86,577
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 B-ll-MC-54-0003 744,116 58,456 58,456
CommunityDevelopmentBlock Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 B-12-MC-54-0003 798,862 798,862 798,862
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 B-13-MC-54-0003 814,973 51,706 51,706

West Virginia Development OfBce
Emergency Solutitms GrantProgram- Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 14.231 E-12-DC-54-0001 14.500 14.500 14.500

TotalUnitedStatesDepartment of Housingand UrbanDevelopment $ 2.951.395 $ 1.184.908 $ 1.184.908

United States Department of the Interior

NationalPark Service/West VirginiaDevelopment OBSce
OutdoorRecreation Acquisition, Development and Planning
OutdoorRecreationAcquisition,Developmentand Planning

Total United States Departmentof the Interior

United States Department of Transportation

FederalHighwayAdmirtistration/West VirginiaDepartment of
Transportation, Division ofHighways

Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction

Total United States Department of Transportation
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15.916 11LEDA0817
15.916 11-044

$ 3,000 $ 3,000
100.000 28.666

3,000
28.666

$ 103.000 $ 31.666 $ 31.666

20.205 TEA-OH22(001)E $ 250,000 $ 147,841 $ 147,841
20.205 TEA-OH22(001)D 300.000 1.093 1.093

$ 550.000 $ 148.934 $ 148.934



aXY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Federal Grantor/Pass-throueh Grantor/

Program Thle

United States Environmental Protection Agency

OSSce ofSolid Waste andEmergency Response
ARRA - Brownsfields Assessment and Cleanup Cooperative Agreements

Total United States Environmental Protection Agency

Total Federal Expenditures

Federal Program or Receipts Federal
CFDA Award or Revenues Disbursements
Number Grant Number Amount Recognized Expenditures

66.818 BF-97398801 $ 200.000 $ 28.719 $ 28.719

$ 200.000 $ 28.719 $ 28.719

$ 4.035.181 $ 1.538.793 $ 1.538.793

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures ofFederal Awards

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying schedule expenditures offederal awards is a summary ofthe activity of the City of
Parkersburg, West Virginia's federal award programs and does not present transactions that would be included in
the financial statements of the City ofParkersburg presented on the accrual basis ofaccounting as contemplated
by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of this schedule.
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aXY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development —Office of Community
Planning and Development - Home Investment Program - CFDA Number 14.239 - Year
Ended June 30,2013; United States Department of Housing and Urban Development —
Office of CommunityPlanning and Development —CommunityDevelopmentBlock
Grants/Entitiement Grants —CFDANumber 14.218 —Year Ended June 30,2013; United
States Department of Housing and Urban Development —Office of ConununityPlanning
and Development - Conununity Development Block Grants/State*s Program and Non-
Entitlement Grants in Hawaii —CFDA Number 14.228 —Year Ended June 30,2013 and
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development —ARRA —Community
Development BlockGrants/Entitlement Grants —Conununity Development BlockGrants
Entitlement Grants Cluster - CFDANumber 14.253 - Year Ended June 30,2013

There wereno prior auditfindings related to federal funding.
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CITY OF PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA
RO. BOX 1427

PARKERSBURG, WEST VIRGINIA 26102

March 2,2015

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

United States DepartmentofHousing and Urban Development

City ofParkersburg, West Virginiarespectfullysubmits the following correctiveactionplan for
the year ended June 30,2014.

Name and address of independent public accounting firm: Tetrick & Bartlett, PLLC,
P.O. Box 1916, Clarksburg, West Virginia 26302-1916.

Audit Period: Jxily 1,2013 - June 30,2014

The findings from the June 30,2014 scheduleoffindings and questioned costs are discussed
below. The findings are numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule.
Section A ofthe schedule. SummaryofAudit Results, does not include findings and is not
addressed.

B. Findings - Financial Statement Audit

Noncompliance

2014-0001 Compliance with Bond Debt Coverage

Recommendation: The City ofParkersburg Parking Garage Fund should review its parking
rates and expenses to permit the Parking Garage Fund to maintain a 110%bond debt coverage.

Action Taken: The City ofParkersburg will review the rates currentlybeing charged by the
Parking Garage Fund as well as reviewing the expenses ofthe Parking Garage Fund.
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C. Findings and Questioned Costs—MajorFederalAward ProgramAudit

UnitedStates DepartmentofHousing and Urban Development - Office ofCommunity
Plannmgand Development —CFDA Number14,239—Home InvestmentPartnerships
Program for the YearEndedJune 30,2014 and UnitedStatesDepartmentofHousing and
UrbanDevelopment—OfSceofCommunityPlanning andDevelopment—CFDA Number
14.218 - CommunityDevelopmentBlock Grant Grants/Entidement Grants for the Year
EndedJune 30,2014.

No Findings

If the United States Department ofHousing and Urban Development has any questions regarding
thisplan, please contact PamSavage, Personnel Director, at (304)424-8462.

Sincerely yours.

6^

Pam Savage
Personnel Director
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